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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of a City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu, and I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today we have convened for two

          7  purposes.  The thrust of our hearing today is on the

          8  issue of private security enforcement of, and

          9  compliance with Department of Transportation rules

         10  and regulations.  This Committee has called this

         11  oversight hearing, the issue was brought to our

         12  special attention by Council Member Eva Moskowitz.

         13  Our job today is to better understand issues

         14  pertaining to private security enforcement of, and

         15  compliance with, DOT rules and regulations.

         16  However, this Committee has encountered many

         17  questions that are closely linked to this topic.

         18  These questions include:

         19                 What authority enables private

         20  management companies and landlords to change the

         21  traffic and parking rules within a private

         22  development?

         23                 To what extent are protocols and

         24  coordination formalized between landlords, private

         25  management companies and City agencies when rules
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          2  are revised and enforced in such private

          3  developments?

          4                 What authority enables private

          5  security personnel to enforce New York City traffic

          6  rules and regulations?

          7                 What type of training and procedures

          8  are followed by private security forces in enforcing

          9  laws and rules regulating motorists driving and

         10  parking on the streets in private development?

         11                 Do these rules, regulations, and

         12  policies result in unfair ticketing of motorists and

         13  a severe inconvenience to motorists, particularly

         14  those who are disabled?

         15                 Is there any lack of oversight that

         16  enables these security officers to selective enforce

         17  the rules, and not comply with the very laws and

         18  rules they are supposed to enforce?

         19                 These issues appear particularly

         20  ambiguous in the case of a private development who's

         21  streets are private, but accessible to the public.

         22  Under such a situation, the broad question becomes

         23  whether the City has any say.

         24                 The Committee is interested in this

         25  question and related issues as they pertain to the
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          2  relationship between the relative City agencies and

          3  private developments.  While these types of

          4  developments operate in relatively small numbers,

          5  such as the one in Coney Island and Forest Hills --

          6  I'm sorry.  In private developments.

          7                 I will turn the floor over to my

          8  distinguished colleague, Eva Moskowitz, in a moment

          9  so that she can have an opening statement about this

         10  issue as well.

         11                 Today, the Committee has also

         12  convened for the purposes of voting on Intro. No.

         13  731- A, which would amend the Administrative Code to

         14  establish a Citywide stoop line stand task force,

         15  and create a period in which stoop line stand owners

         16  can cure an obstruction to the free flow of

         17  pedestrian passage on a sidewalk.  The task force

         18  would consist of seven members, and would convene

         19  whenever the Department of Consumer Affairs, or the

         20  Department of Transportation proposes, or is

         21  required by law, to promulgate or revise rules

         22  relating to stoop line stands.  The task force will

         23  meet at least three times in a calendar year.  At

         24  these meetings, the task force would examine issues

         25  and concerns related to these sidewalk stands.  The
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          2  task force would serve as a mechanism where small

          3  businesses and the general public can provide input

          4  into, and feed back on, the rules governing stoop

          5  line stands.

          6                 The bill sunsets the task force after

          7  four years. The bill would also address those

          8  instances where a license issued has not been

          9  renewed, solely because DOT has made a determination

         10  that a stoop line stand causes an obstruction to the

         11  free use of the sidewalks by pedestrians.  The bill

         12  would require the Department of Consumer Affairs to

         13  send a notice informing a licensee of the

         14  determination that such a licensee does pose an

         15  obstruction.  The bill would then provide the

         16  licensee, or the store owner with a 30- day period

         17  from receipt of the notice, within to remedy the

         18  obstruction to the satisfaction of the Department of

         19  Transportation.

         20                 A stoop line stand license would

         21  remain in full force and effect, and no violation

         22  could be issued for such an obstruction until the

         23  DCA, the Department of Consumer Affairs, makes a

         24  formal determination that the licensee has failed to

         25  fix the problem.
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          2                 This bill balances the needs of

          3  pedestrian sidewalk access with those of small

          4  business owners, and in particular, the language

          5  allowing the cure period was specifically requested

          6  by leaders of the small business community.

          7                 At this time, we are waiting for

          8  additional members of the Committee.  I'd like to

          9  pass the floor over to Council Member Moskowitz for

         10   -- to make things a little more smooth, and easier

         11  to understand, Council Member Moskowitz is going to

         12  defer her opening comments until we finish the

         13  testimony on Intro. No. 731, and then move on to the

         14  thrust of today's hearing, which is the private

         15  enforcement of City traffic rules and regulations.

         16                 I'd like to turn the floor over to

         17  Council Member Leroy Comrie, who is the prime

         18  sponsor of Intro. No. 731, which we are going to

         19  vote on this morning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         21  to interrupt for a moment.  I have before me

         22  information concerning the stoop line stand task

         23  force legislation.  However, I have no information

         24  before me on the other matter before the Committee.

         25  So, could I ask that that be distributed either to
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          2  everybody, or at least to me?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Absolutely.  Council

          4  Member Comrie.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.  Good morning.  I just want to echo the need

          7  for the creation of the task force for the stoop

          8  line stands.  Primarily because, as we started to

          9  investigate this problem, and realize that there is

         10  a problem around the City with the use of public

         11  sidewalks to sell goods, there is also an

         12  acknowledgment that there's a frustration about how

         13  DOT is dealing with the issue.  And hopefully, the

         14  development of this task force will sit down and

         15  force real conversation between all parties that are

         16  involved in this issue to ensure that there is some

         17  real regulation and some real requirements that can

         18  be delineated and established to create proper

         19  rules, and easily discernible regulations dealing

         20  with the stoop lines.

         21                 Right now, as we all now know, the

         22  permits are automatically redone every year in

         23  March, without any investigation, without any

         24  thought or process, or really anything done to make

         25  sure that the situation in the community has or has
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          2  not changed.  That the pedestrian traffic has or has

          3  not increased. That the owner has or has not self

          4  enforced all rules and regulations regarding stoop

          5  line stands.

          6                 It's not fair to the owners, it's not

          7  fair to DOT, and it's not fair to the pedestrians

          8  who have to move around the City.

          9                 So, hopefully, by bringing all

         10  parties together, by sitting down and actually

         11  dealing with this issue in the City that's ever

         12  growing.  In Queens, where our population has

         13  doubled, and other parts of the City where

         14  population has become more dense, and they widened

         15  sidewalks or widened streets to deal with this

         16  issue, I think it's only fair that we create this

         17  stoop line task force.  And I hope that the members

         18  of the Transportation Committee will pass the bill

         19  today.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         21    At this tine I'd like to invite the

         22  representatives of the Administration to offer their

         23  comments on Intro. No. 731.

         24                 I see our Deputy Commissioner.

         25  Deputy Commissioners.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          3  with your permission.  As we know, Mr. Chairman,

          4  legislation passed this Council establishing new

          5  regulations with respect to stoop line stands.  As

          6  you will recall, I think most people here realize,

          7  and you know that I voted against that legislation.

          8  The legislation was then vetoed by the Mayor, and is

          9  before the Council for consideration of the override

         10  of the veto.  I would like to understand whether --

         11  I believe you were the prime sponsor of the stoop

         12  line stand proposed law.  I would like to understand

         13  your intention with respect to that law in light of

         14  this proposal. Because I think that -- is this

         15  proposal intended to complement that proposed law?

         16  Or is it your -- and I guess my question is are you

         17  planning to move your bill, in this current session

         18  of the Council?  The earlier bill.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

         20  Koppell, Intro. No. 699 that was passed to reclaim

         21  sidewalk space for the pedestrians of New York City,

         22  and to require that the Department of Transportation

         23  uphold their responsibility with regard to the

         24  maintenance of safety on sidewalks for pedestrians.

         25  That is the thrust of Into. No. 699.  Unfortunately,
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          2  the Mayor has vetoed that bill.  That bill is coming

          3  up for a vote to override the Mayor's veto this

          4  coming Thursday.

          5                 In addition, because as 699 was

          6  vetoed by the Mayor, there have been many claims by

          7  the Administration and the Department of

          8  Transportation that we severely disagree with, and

          9  that we are fearful will lead to punishing, possibly

         10  vindictive enforcement against store owners, which

         11  is certainly not the intent of Intro. No. 699.  And

         12  so, we have, with Council Member Comrie's

         13  leadership, introduced Intro. No. 731 to set up a

         14  task force to make sure that the enforcement and

         15  compliance with the new law by the Department of

         16  Transportation will not serve to punish store

         17  owners.

         18                 And at the same time, we have created

         19  language in there at the request of the small

         20  business owners to provide a cure period, so it is

         21  not an absolute black and white situation.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         24  I appreciate your clarification of that, and I'll

         25  withhold comment until after the testimony.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          3                 At this time, we have representatives

          4  of the Administration, who are going to provide us

          5  with comments on Intro. No. 731.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good morning

          7  Chairman Liu and members of the Transportation

          8  Committee.  I am Pauline Toole, an Assistant

          9  Commissioner at the New York City Department of

         10  Consumer Affairs.  And I've been joined by David

         11  Woloch, the Deputy Commissioner of External Affairs

         12  at the Department of Transportation.  We thank you

         13  for this opportunity to be here today to testify on

         14  Intro. No. 731- A.

         15                 This bill would establish a stoop

         16  line task force comprised of seven members

         17  representing the small business community and the

         18  public sector.  The general public.  The task force

         19  would meet at least three times annually, review

         20  current and proposed rules regarding stoop line

         21  stands, and proposed to DCA and DOT, new rules.

         22                 The task force would also be required

         23  to issue periodic reports of its findings.  In

         24  addition, Intro. No. 731- A would require DCA and

         25  DOT to jointly submit a report on stoop line stand
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          2  licensing, enforcement and complaints every four

          3  months.

          4                 Finally, in the event DCA does not

          5  renew a license due to DOT's determination that the

          6  stoop line stand poses an obstruction to the free

          7  use of the sidewalks by pedestrians, Intro. No. 731-

          8  A would provide stoop line stand licensees 30 days

          9  to cure the obstruction.

         10                 As you know, the Department of

         11  Consumer Affairs licenses the stoop line stands.

         12  Under the law, these stands may only sell a limited

         13  number of goods including fruits, vegetables,

         14  confections, tobacco, ice cream, and cut flowers.

         15  The law also establishes the size of the stands.

         16  They may not exceed ten feet in length or four feet

         17  in width, unless the sidewalk is 16 feet wide.  In

         18  that instance, a stoop line stand can be up to five

         19  feet wide as long as there is an unobstructed

         20  pathway of at least nine feet is maintained at all

         21  tines on the sidewalk.  The clear path for every

         22  five foot stand is checked before the license is

         23  issued. Currently, there are 2,126 licensed stoop

         24  line stands throughout the five boroughs.

         25                 The Administration, and I believe the
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          2  Council, both view this bill as a companion bill to

          3  Intro. No. 699, which was recently vetoed by Mayor

          4  Bloomberg.  As such, I cannot address our concerns

          5  with Intro. No. 731- A without first reiterating our

          6  concern with Intro. No. 699.

          7                 Intro. No. 699 would require the

          8  Department of Transportation to conduct an on- site

          9  pedestrian count of each stoop line stand, and

         10  prepare a report containing the data used to

         11  determine whether or not the agency believes that

         12  the presence of a stoop line stand would have an

         13  adverse effect on pedestrian safety or pose an

         14  obstruction to the use of the sidewalk by

         15  pedestrians before DCA could issue or renew a

         16  license to operate a stoop line stand.

         17                 Our many concerns with 699 are fully

         18  stated in Mayor Bloomberg's veto message.  I will

         19  briefly highlight only a few of them.  Simply

         20  stated, Intro. No. 699 will cost the City $1 million

         21  annually to address the problem that all acknowledge

         22  does exist. The City has received no complaints

         23  regarding stoop line stands, and to the extent a

         24  problem does exist, it is with other legal

         25  obstructions that do not require a license or
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          2  problems related to general vending.

          3                 In the last fiscal year, DCA received

          4  295 complaints about fruit and vegetable stands.

          5  The vast majority of those were erroneous.  They

          6  dealt with fruit and vegetable vendors using mobile

          7  carts, not stoop line stands.  There are only 45

          8  valid complaints.  Twenty- nine dealt with blocked

          9  sidewalks; 14 dealt with pricing or weights and

         10  measures issues; and two concerned unlicensed

         11  stands.  New Yorkers do not view these stands as

         12  problems, and neither, by and large, does the

         13  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         14                 Implementing this bill will cost $1

         15  million.  Either licensees will pay more, or the

         16  City will need to absorb the cost. As Deputy

         17  Commissioner Woloch noted in his testimony before

         18  this Committee in August, DOT, an agency that has

         19  shown its commitment to improving safety for

         20  pedestrians throughout the City, could find a more

         21  effective use for $1 million instead of using it to

         22  conduct more than 2,000 stoop line stand

         23  inspections.

         24                 It also is important to highlight the

         25  bill's potential negative impact on licensees.
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          2  Given that all 2,126 licenses expire at the same

          3  time, on March 31st, this bill would result in

          4  potentially unmanageable burden for DOT, including

          5  more than 2,000 on- site analyses conducted in a

          6  short period of time, causing delays and confusion

          7  for licensees.  And what would be the result?  Many

          8  small businesses would be prohibited from operating

          9  their stoop line stands perhaps for many months.

         10                 As I turn to Intro. No. 731- A, let

         11  me provide you with some statistics for violations

         12  issued to stoop line stands. In Fiscal Year 2005,

         13  DCA issue 357 violations to licensees who were out

         14  of compliance, and 253 violations to businesses that

         15  operated unlicensed stands.  Most of the violations

         16  issued to the licensed stands, 219 out of the 357,

         17  were for having boxes and crates in front of, or

         18  alongside the stand.  Seventy stands were cited for

         19  being oversized, and 49 received violations for

         20  preparing items on the sidewalk.  In addition, we

         21  closed and confiscated the products of 14 stands.

         22  This is not a high- volume, high- complaint, high

         23  violation business sector.

         24                 While a task force, in and of itself,

         25  may be worth pursuing, we do have concerns with the
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          2  task force envisioned in Intro. No. 731- A.  The

          3  task force, whose role is strictly advisory, does

          4  not provide a role for either DCA or DOT.  For the

          5  task force to be more effective, representation of

          6  the Commissioners of these Departments, or their

          7  designees, should be included.  Without that

          8  participation, how will the task force move beyond

          9  opinion to fact?

         10                 In addition, we disagree with the

         11  balance of appointment, and believe, at the very

         12  least, that there should be equal representation

         13  between the Mayor and City Council appointments.

         14  The Administration also believes that members should

         15  be appointed for fixed terms and other functions

         16  outlined in the bill, such as the mechanism for

         17  convening the board, should be set by rule.

         18                 In conclusion, Intro. No. 731- A

         19  fails to address any of the Administration's many

         20  concerns with Intro. No. 699.  In fact, when coupled

         21  with Intro. No. 699, it merely adds a senseless

         22  layer of bureaucracy to a costly process that will

         23  disenfranchise small business owners.  It may be

         24  worthwhile to pursue legislations that establishes a

         25  process for assembling, reviewing and analyzing data
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          2  about stoop line stands, in order to determine if

          3  any problem exists and how such problems should be

          4  addressed.  However, given its connection to Intro.

          5  No. 699, and our drafting concerns, the

          6  Administration at this time, cannot support Intro.

          7  No. 731- A.

          8                 Let me conclude by saying that we

          9  strongly believe it is more appropriate from a

         10  policy and fiscal perspective, to first determine

         11  whether or not a perceived problem exists, its depth

         12  in relation to other factors, before devoting scare

         13  resources to a solution that may not be warranted,

         14  or may simply be the wrong solution.

         15                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

         16  to testify before you today, and we would be happy

         17  to answer your questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         19                 Commissioner Woloch.  Are you there

         20  to answer questions also or do you have testimony?

         21                 MR. WOLOCH: Correct.  No testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Question from

         23  Council Member Martinez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

         25  Mr. Chair.
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          2                 I want to commend you on the issue of

          3  stoop line, and Council Member Leroy Comrie, for

          4  putting together this legislation.  Not only is the

          5  Council acting on an issue that, particularly in my

          6  district, is of high concern.  Especially for my

          7  seniors.  I represent the Washington Heights

          8  community in Norther Manhattan, and I usually

          9  receive notices from the Department of Consumer

         10  Affairs when you go out to the community and you do

         11  enforcement on issues similar to stoop line.  And

         12  when I go out and I speak to the merchants, and I

         13  try to convince them that they are actually becoming

         14  a hazard to many of our seniors and pedestrians that

         15  want to walk the sidewalk.  Their respond to me

         16   "Well, this is the cost of doing business".  And

         17  unfortunately, the violation that I see in my

         18  district, it's not of concern to many of the

         19  merchants, and what the Council here is trying to

         20  do, is to establish a mechanism in which we could

         21  hold some of these merchants accountable in making

         22  sure that they not only consider this violation a

         23  cost of doing business, but in fact that we need

         24  real enforcement.

         25                 Now, Commissioner, when you mentioned
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          2  that this is a non- issue in the City of New York,

          3  and you mentioned the number of violations and

          4  concerns and so forth, do you know where these

          5  violations were issued, in what part of the City?

          6                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I didn't bring

          7  that breakdown, but I certainly could get it for

          8  you, and give it to you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, that's

         10  important. Because in a community like mine, where

         11  there is a lot of economic activities in terms of

         12  businesses, small businesses, where we want to

         13  encourage small businesses, but we also want to

         14  encourage that pedestrians have access to the

         15  sidewalks.  Especially my seniors. This is a major

         16  issue for my seniors.

         17                 It's hard for me to believe that this

         18  is a non issue, in terms of priority in communities

         19  such as mine, where we have such a diverse economic

         20  activities happening, from fruits, to flowers, to my

         21  biggest issue is the clothing stores that sometimes

         22  go out there.  And I know things are confusing.

         23  There's a difference between a stoop line, there's a

         24  difference between putting clothing out there.  But

         25  if we have a mechanism where we're sending a message
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          2  that we're going out there, we're going to be

          3  enforcing the law, and people are going to be held

          4  accountable, I think we're sending a strong message

          5  for those who think they can get away with it.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well Councilman,

          7  we don't disagree.  I think.  We would be happy to

          8  put together our borough commander and staff to go

          9  through your district, as we did with Councilman

         10  Liu's district, and walk it, and look for unlicensed

         11  stoop line stands.  But I bet you dollars to donuts

         12  that what's going to happen is the same thing that

         13  happened in Councilman Liu's district, is that the

         14  obstructions are obstructions not by licensed stoop

         15  line stands, but all the other many uses on the

         16  street.  Some of which are not appropriate, and are

         17  already prohibited under City law.

         18                 So streets that have street

         19  obstructions, those displays by stores when they're

         20  not permitted.  There is a mechanism to enforce

         21  that, and I know that we'd be happy to work with you

         22  on that.  But putting in place 699 that sort of

         23  creates an obstruction to licensing legitimate

         24  businesses before you determine that they are the

         25  problem, we take issue with.

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 So we'd be happy to go through your

          3  district, and walk through, and say license due,

          4  blind stand, illegal obstruction.  Mobile food cart

          5  vendors, because those truly are the things that end

          6  up congesting the streets.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But will you

          8  agree that we need to do something else other than

          9  just walk the street and say, licensed, not

         10  licensed, violation, no violation?  In terms of

         11  follow up, and I think that this bill provides the

         12  mechanism for follow up.

         13                 I agree with you that there should be

         14  some mechanism, Mr. Chair, and Council Member

         15  Comrie, who is the author of the bill, I do agree

         16  with you that this bill should have some provision

         17  where there should be representation from both

         18  Commissioners so that any recommendation there is

         19  follow up.  I agree with you on that point.  But

         20  however, I think that we must go further in follow

         21  up in insuring that not only are we saying there are

         22  violations or license, because I could tell you,

         23  that I think I know my community pretty well, and

         24  where I will find most of the violations of these

         25  stoop line is usually on a corner store, that it's
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          2  selling produce, such as fruits, vegetables and so

          3  forth, and they go way beyond the limits.

          4                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: What I can

          5  guarantee you is that the Department of Consumer

          6  Affairs will issue violations to any stoop line

          7  stand that exceeds its permitted size or has boxes

          8  along the street disrupting pedestrian flow.  We'll

          9  go with you, we'll figure out where the stands that

         10  are licensed in your community are.  And where there

         11  are unlicensed stands, we also will tell the

         12  businesses they need to get licensed.

         13                 But I think our view is that the bill

         14  to which this is a companion, 699, actually is

         15  charging a whole lot of stoop line stands, 2,000 and

         16  some, with an unfortunate burden, and costing the

         17  City a lot of money.  We enforce, and I can tell

         18  you, given the small number of complaints by New

         19  Yorkers, this isn't the problem. That was what my

         20  point was.

         21                 But we'd be happy to work with you to

         22  figure out the particular issues in your district.

         23  Or any other district.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And I

         25  appreciate that, and I look forward to doing that
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          2  with you.  I would say again, it is an issue in my

          3  particular district.  And when I visit my seniors,

          4  the first thing they tell me is they cannot walk the

          5  street.  And I'm not saying they all have to do with

          6  stoop line, I understand where you're coming from.

          7  But where we have them, it is a big issue.

          8                 I usually encourage them to call 911,

          9  I'm going to do it more, so we could have it on

         10  record.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: 311.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: 311, I'm

         13  sorry.  311. The 1-1's get me confused.  But

         14  absolutely I look forward to working with you and

         15  looking at my district, and specifically any

         16  violations issued in my district with stoop lines

         17  and which are the ones that you have the records of

         18  that, that are licensed in my particular district.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.  And again, I

         20  want to thank you for your leadership on this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         22  Member Martinez.

         23                 Just briefly address some of the

         24  points that Commissioner Toole brought up.  The 731

         25  is not a companion bill.  It is a bill that we set
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          2  up so that DOT and the Administration would not

          3  unfairly penalize store owners.  That is the intent

          4  of 731.  731 stands on its own, with our without

          5  699.  Perhaps the concerns about how the

          6  Administration would go about complying with 699

          7  brought about the need for 731, because we did not

          8  want store owners to be unfairly penalized.  But

          9  they are not companion bills, they stand on their

         10  own, and they will be voted on separately.

         11                 As far as the Commissioner Toole's

         12  comments about what they did in my district,

         13  Consumer Affairs, and I just want my colleagues to

         14  understand this, more than two years ago, when I

         15  consistently and continuously told the

         16  Administration of this problem of not having enough

         17  sidewalk space for pedestrians to walk on, the only

         18  thing that they offered to me at that time was this

         19  multi- agency response that Commissioner Toole

         20  brought up.  Now this multi- agency response is

         21  basically, agents from several agencies,

         22  Transportation, Consumer Affairs, Sanitation,

         23  Health, any agency you can think of.  And what they

         24  did, is they swept through the stores in my downtown

         25  area, and issued as many tickets as possible. So
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          2  they idea of a multi- agency response was a ticket

          3  blitz.  I asked them not to do it.  Because that's

          4  not going to get at the problem, but they did it

          5  anyway.  So their response to me, in trying to solve

          6  this problem, was to send out a multi- agency ticket

          7  blitz.  It's absolutely unconscionable, what they

          8  did.

          9                 But the point here is that it is not

         10  Consumer Affairs that 731 or 699 actually begins to

         11  try to address.  It is a negligence on the part of

         12  the Department of Transportation.  They have simply,

         13  for the last 20 years, failed to uphold their

         14  obligations under the law.  We have no gripes with

         15  the Department of Consumer Affairs at this point.

         16  The storeowners have lots of gripes, which is why we

         17  set up a task force under Intro. No. 731. But it is

         18  the Department of Transportation's absolute

         19  negligence in making sure that there is a balance on

         20  the sidewalks, that we had to pass Intro. No. 699.

         21                 And to take care of our concerns,

         22  that the DOT would be fairly vindictive against

         23  these storeowners, we're setting up a task force and

         24  providing a cure period under Intro. No. 731.

         25                 Questions from Council Member
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          2  Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I have a

          4  couple of questions.  Just for clarity's sake, in

          5  your testimony, you pointed out that DCA received

          6  295 complaints about fruit and vegetable stands, but

          7  you're saying that only 29 actually dealt with

          8  blocked sidewalks, is that correct?  The rest were

          9  weights and two unlicensed stands.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No.  There were

         11  45 valid complaints.  The others were about street

         12  obstructions that aren't stoop line stands.  There

         13  are, for argument's sake, three basic kinds of

         14  businesses that can occur on a City sidewalks. Well,

         15  there are more.  In terms of stores selling things.

         16  One are general vendors and food vendors with their

         17  carts.  Two, there are stoop line stands, and three,

         18  there are street obstructions, where stores are

         19  allowed to put displays out in the street, and

         20  they're not regulated.  And I think there's a lot of

         21  confusion about those different kinds of businesses,

         22  which is why the vast majority of the complaints we

         23  received were really not about stoop line stands,

         24  but about these other topics.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: When you
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          2  testified, 29 dealt with blocked sidewalks, is that

          3  the stoop line vendors and other vendors?

          4                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That is the stoop

          5  line stores that put boxes and crates generally out

          6  into the sidewalk or alongside, creating a difficult

          7  passage.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: My next

          9  question is, that you stated that the establishment

         10  of this task force would cost the City $1 million.

         11  How do you come to that figure?

         12                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No, no.  It's not

         13   -- I'll defer to you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: If I could

         15  respond to that Councilman.  The $1 million refers

         16  to the first piece of legislation.  699, not to the

         17  task force.  But to the inspections that DOT would

         18  be required to do for all 2,000 stoop line stands.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And then I

         20  have two quick questions.  The third one would be,

         21  is it your understanding there is some type of

         22  enforcement mechanisms now for stoop line vendors

         23  that might be obstructing the sidewalk?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Absolutely.  And

         25  I think --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And who

          3  would be enforcing that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We enforce those

          5  violations. Last year, we confiscated materials from

          6  14 stands that were illegal.  They wouldn't bother

          7  to get licensed.  We took their products away and

          8  donated it to the food banks.  We issued violations

          9  to businesses as we enumerated in the testimony that

         10  are licensed, but were oversized, or otherwise

         11  creating problems.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So the 14

         13  stands that you confiscated were for unlicensed

         14  stands?

         15                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Unlicensed, or

         16  severely oversized.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Oversized

         18  and unlicensed. Would the Department of

         19  Transportation also have the authority to issue that

         20  summons for obstruction of sidewalks?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It's a violation

         22  per the Department of Consumer Affairs code, so they

         23  would be issuing that violation.  But I think the

         24  point that Commissioner Toole is making, is that the

         25  universe that Councilman Martinez described, the
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          2  problems there aren't the four or five feet taken up

          3  by licensed stands.  For the most part.  They are

          4  licensed stands that exceed their space.  They are

          5  unlicensed stoop line stands.  They are illegal

          6  obstructions.  And I think that's the most important

          7  point.  That I think both agencies are terribly

          8  concerned about clutter on the sidewalks.  And

          9  pedestrian safety above everything else.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The

         11  clarity that I'm looking for, is, in my prior life,

         12  I knew a little something about the New York City

         13  traffic regulations.  And I believe that, currently,

         14  under the traffic regulations, there is a violation

         15  in fact, put into the regulations, dealing with

         16  sidewalk obstructions, which, I imagine, both the

         17  Department of Transportation and the New York City

         18  Police Department would be able to issue a summons

         19  for. I just wanted to get confirmation if my opinion

         20  is correct.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think the

         22  distinction is between obstructions and stoop line

         23  stands.  And I think there's often confusion between

         24  the two, which is part of the issue. Violations for

         25  stoop line stands would be handled by the Department

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  of Consumer Affairs.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And

          4  obstructed sidewalks would be handled by --

          5                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I believe

          6  primarily by the Police Department.  I believe we

          7  can as well, but I need to get back to you on that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

          9  Then my last question is, in your testimony, you

         10  stated that the Administration would be willing to

         11  work in devising a policy that will deal with the

         12  spirit of both these bills, is that correct?  Or is

         13  that incorrect?

         14                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I would say it's

         15  correct.  That we, the Department of Consumer

         16  Affairs does not believe that stoop line stands are

         17  a problem to the City.  But we do acknowledge that

         18  if there are issues, there's really a reason to work

         19  together and figure out what the data is, and a

         20  mechanism for addressing a problem that we can agree

         21  on, and that the rest of New York agrees on too.  So

         22  we would be willing to work with you on that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         24    Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council
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          2  Monserrate.

          3                 Council Member Comrie.

          4                 I have to ask our colleagues to keep

          5  the comments and questions as brief as possible and

          6  for the Commissioners to keep your comments as brief

          7  as possible.  We do have a large number of witnesses

          8  that have to testify today.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Commissioner,

         10  you did state that -- I want to be clear -- I

         11  introduced 731 separate and apart from 699.  Because

         12  my understanding of the situation is, and you can

         13  clarify it if I'm wrong, that DOT has no process to

         14  make a determination on stoop line stands, or you do

         15  no yearly review of any of the 2,100 or so stoop

         16  line stands that are on line now with the City.  Is

         17  there any yearly review done by the DOT at all of

         18  the 2,100 stands plus, that are now licensed by the

         19  City?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: As I pointed out

         21  in the testimony regarding 699 a few months ago, we

         22  currently, for the most part, have not received

         23  complaints about legal stoop line stands in the

         24  space they occupy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But you just

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  testified that a lot of people are confused about

          3  what they're complaining about, and a blockage to a

          4  pedestrian, they don't have the expertise to

          5  understand what is a stoop line, or what is an

          6  obstruction, or what is that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER  WOLOCH: I think that's

          8  a fair point. But we've not received complaints

          9  about the stoop line stands, as I testified last

         10  time. --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But again, --

         12                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: If I could just

         13  answer the question.  We did articulate last time a

         14  process that we would use. And I think we agree with

         15  the Council that we would never want to put in place

         16  a random and arbitrary process.  I don't think that

         17  would serve the businesses well, I don't think it

         18  would serve the City well, I don't think it would

         19  serve pedestrians well.

         20                 We didn't support 699, but we

         21  articulated how we felt we would have to respond if

         22  it were passed into law.  And the way we would do

         23  that, is we would have a strict criteria that our

         24  inspectors would use, the same way for every stand.

         25  Where you calculate the number of people walking by
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          2  a spot during a fixed period of time, and relate

          3  that to the amount of space available.            So

          4  we share that concern.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Again, but you

          6  did articulate that most people don't know what

          7  they're complaining about.  So it's not like the

          8  average New Yorker is going to call 311 and say, I

          9  have a stoop line stand problem.  They just see a

         10  sidewalk blockage.  Correct?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think that's

         12  correct, but since this issue has arisen in this

         13  chamber, I think we've now testified about it three

         14  or four times, since the last hearing, where we had

         15  a long discussion about it, we have not received,

         16  for example, any stoop line- related requests from

         17  any members of the Council.  So I think even in this

         18  case, where we have the formed body, and you all

         19  certainly receive many complaints from constituents,

         20  and pass many of them on to us, traffic signals,

         21  broken sidewalks, the gamut, but we still, during

         22  the past few months, have not received specific

         23  complaints involving stoop line stands.  And again,

         24  go back to the point made by Commissioner Toole,

         25  that even as it relates to sidewalk clutter, there
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          2  are so many other issues that are happening, stoop

          3  line stands, particularly issues related to legal

          4  stoop line stands, in the four or five feet they're

          5  allowed to occupy, that does not appear to be a

          6  significant part of the problem.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But you also

          8  are saying that you have over 2,000 stoop line

          9  stands that you've had done no on site analysis in

         10  any period of time.  Don't you think that traffic

         11  patterns have changed in Queens or Chinatown, or in

         12  the Bronx, in that particular time?  And doesn't it

         13  seem to warrant a reanalysis at some particular

         14  period of time?  What would you say would be a fair

         15  particular period of time?  Once a year?  Once every

         16  five years?  Once in a decade?  What would you claim

         17  to be fair?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: First of all,

         19  the Department of Consumer Affairs does go out on a

         20  regular basis and looks at each stand.  And again,

         21  we're not opposed to the idea of addressing this

         22  issue in some way, shape, or form.  But I think the

         23  point is that the vast, vast majority of these

         24  stands are not posing a problem, they're occupying

         25  the space that they should be occupying.  So the
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          2  question is, is it worth this enormous effort to do

          3  the kinds of analysis that we would all expect if

          4  this kind of law was in place.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But 731 is not

          6  calling for anything other than sitting down with a

          7  group of people that are involved and either

          8  suffering, or involved in this process to come up

          9  with regulations and procedures and policy that

         10  would make sense, so that you're not just

         11  automatically relicensing 2,100 stands without some

         12  kind of opportunity for fair review.  We're not

         13  looking for an oppressive review, or we're not

         14  looking even for a yearly review.  But at least

         15  during the licensing process, --

         16                 And then you wanted to address, you

         17  said there would be delays and confusions.  The bill

         18  would just also call for a moratorium so that no

         19  business would be lost.  No stoop line would be

         20  taken away until the task force came out with its

         21  regulations. And clearly, also, as part of the task

         22  force, it would be implied that DOT and DCA would be

         23  part of that task force for it to be effective.

         24  That could be resolved.  But to say that since all

         25  of the licenses expiring at the same time would be
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          2  potentially unmanageable, the bill calls for the

          3  fact that that would be frozen, that no business

          4  would be lost.

          5                 Also, you talked about the Mayor's

          6  veto saying that you would have to waste thousands

          7  of hours and hundreds of dollars doing pedestrian

          8  volume studies, but that wouldn't be done unless

          9  there was a specific complaint.  We're not asking

         10  for an automatic study of every one until there is a

         11  registered complaint, either done by the public or

         12  the Council.  So you're acting a bit precipitously

         13  claiming that it would cost $1 million to do a study

         14  when, as you said, until there's a complaint,

         15  there's no need for a particular study.  Until

         16  there's a stoop line that should be relicensed,

         17  there should be no need for a particular study.  So

         18  it should be built in within the cost of the

         19  licensing, which would dramatically reduce the cost,

         20  to not have this inflated cost that you're

         21  projecting so far.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Again, I think

         23  the greater concerns of the Administration is 699,

         24  and that's where that cost-

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But I'm not
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          2  talking about 699.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I understand

          4  that.  And I think Commissioner Toole articulated

          5  some of our concerns with your bill, and certainly

          6  we're open to the spirit of it.  I think it's fair

          7  to say.  Of working to take a closer look at what,

          8  granted, is a very confusing set of issue.  I think

          9  our greatest concerns are the conjunction of the two

         10  bills.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: And I think that

         12  Commissioner Woloch is absolutely accurate.  It's

         13  that if 699 were to become law, there would be a

         14  trigger for all licensees to have these pedestrian

         15  count inspections that will cost about $1 million,

         16  and there is no mechanism to pass that cost along to

         17  the businesses, you just thought might be helpful.

         18  Absent the City Council putting in a local law that

         19  would accept the fee to absorb that cost.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Again, you're

         21  mixing apples and oranges.  I'm talking about the

         22  need to do a study, or a task force, with people

         23  that are involved in the industry, with people from

         24  the City, and with the perspective agencies.  You

         25  keep talking about doing inspections.  I don't think
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          2  inspections need to be done on a blanket basis.  If

          3  they do it on a case- by- case basis, and it's part

          4  of DOT's regular obligation, which they haven't done

          5  in the past 20 years, with a $550 million plus

          6  budget, I think that could be well absorbed as part

          7  of putting together their rules and regulations, and

          8  putting together the responsibilities in a different

          9  way.

         10                 So I don't see the problem with the

         11  money, and to try to imply that we have to do a PEG

         12  or something to allow DOT to get more money to do

         13  that, I think is deliberately confusing.

         14                 The other point that I wanted to talk

         15  about -- the issue that I still want to come back to

         16  is there is a lack of investigation, or there is a

         17  total lack of update on what DOT is doing regarding

         18  the stoop line stands, with 2,000 plus licenses

         19  being reissued every year.  The issue to try to do

         20  the task force was so that there would be some frank

         21  discussion on how they could be fairly regulated.

         22  And I would hope that we could get back to that

         23  essence and stop mixing oranges with apples.  Stop

         24  throwing in 699 with 731,  I think it stands alone.

         25  I think the bill makes sense to come up with
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          2  something in a changing City, in an evolving City,

          3  to make sure that there is a task force that's

          4  working with the City to ensure that business owners

          5  concerns are mitigated in a fair manner where we

          6  don't have these major sweeps that come down on

          7  businesses because the City feels that they're

          8  overburdened by one agency doing the work.  And

          9  that's why we created 731, to create a task force to

         10  deal with this issue.  You want to claim that this

         11  issue is not a primary issue, but it's a critical

         12  issue. I think they're doing it under the stoop line

         13  stands instead of just calling it a pedestrian task

         14  force deals with an issue in a technical manner when

         15  most people are calling to say that their sidewalk

         16  is blocked.  And I would dare say that most people,

         17  once they get home, that's the last thing they're

         18  thinking about.

         19                 So I would implore you to focus on

         20  731 and the need to create a task force to deal with

         21  this issue.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         23  Member Comrie.

         24                 Questions from Council Member Reyna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.
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          2  Chair.  I'll try to be expedient with my questions.

          3  I just want to get an overview to understanding --

          4  you had mentioned three different types of clutter

          5  that occurs on sidewalks.  I got the general vendors

          6  with carts, second was stoop line vendors.  But I

          7  didn't quite get the third.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Obstructions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Obstructions.

         10  And obstructions can be anything that's not

         11  licensed.  Or you have --

         12                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: You have

         13  obstructions that are legal, and obstructions that

         14  are illegal.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Can you give me

         16  an example of legal obstruction?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure.  On a

         18  street where vending is allowed, where vending is

         19  not prohibited, businesses can have obstructions up

         20  to three feet -- meaning they can have wares in

         21  front of their business, up to three feet.  That's

         22  where vending is allowed.  On streets where vending

         23  is not allowed, they cannot have those obstructions.

         24    So again, a number of elements in the universe,

         25  you have legal obstructions, illegal obstructions,
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          2  stoop lines, and --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So stoop line

          4  vendor can quality under obstructions, legal

          5  licensed.  Like one category can fall under two

          6  different categories.

          7                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: They're separate.

          8    They have a license to be there, on their

          9  premises, selling items, whether or not the street

         10  is closed to vending and street obstruction.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think it's

         12  important to clarify, so they are different.  A

         13  stoop line stand, while we may think of it as an

         14  obstruction, it is legally a different category.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.  And as

         16  far as the stoop line stands that have been

         17  licensed, a total of 2,126 licenses, you apply

         18  through DCA, but it's with the approval of DOT.

         19  Correct?  That's the Administrative Code for

         20  licensing stoop line vending.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Most of the stoop

         22  lines that exist, the 2,126, have been there for a

         23  very long time.  Last year, we got 400 new

         24  applications, and they all were for, by and large,

         25  new owners of existing stands.  When our inspectors
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          2  are out in the field inspecting a stoop line stand,

          3  they measure the size of the stand to make sure it

          4  complies with the law.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That drives me

          6  to my next question.  Is it fair to say that

          7  inspections of stoop line compliance is driven by

          8  complaints?

          9                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: In part it's

         10  driven by complaints.  But our Department

         11  restructured how we do enforcement, --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Since when?

         13                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Two years ago.

         14  Two and a half years ago.  Instead of randomly

         15  sending out a different group of inspectors to

         16  different types of violations, so a weighs and

         17  measures inspector to check the scales, a general

         18  inspector to check that the stoop line was licensed,

         19  another inspector to check something else, we put

         20  all of those functions into one group of inspectors.

         21    So now the inspectors have routes that they

         22  follow. And if they're going to a street that's, for

         23  argument's sake, to look for the electronic store

         24  and find out if it's complying with the law, they'll

         25  go to the stoop line stands on the route.
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          2                 In addition, if we get complaints

          3  about stoop line stands, we will go out and enforce.

          4    We'll integrate that complaint into the route.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And if there

          6  were 295 complaints, then I'm assuming that 295

          7  inspections were conducted. What happened to the

          8  rest of those licenses?

          9                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, there were

         10  295 complaints, but only 45 of them dealt with stoop

         11  line stands.  The others -- when someone complains

         12  about a mobile food cart selling fruits and

         13  vegetables, that is dealt with by the City

         14  Department of Health, in their enforcement capacity.

         15    That's not something the Department of Consumer

         16  Affairs can issue violations for.  They were

         17  recirculated into the system.

         18                 Of the 45 valid complaints about

         19  stoop line stands, our inspectors went out, and if a

         20  ticket were warranted, they gave a ticket.  And

         21  certainly for the two that were unlicensed, those

         22  people got violations.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But as far as

         24  inspectors going out, are they DCA inspectors?  Or

         25  are they Transportation inspectors?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Our inspectors.

          3  They're DCA inspectors.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So DCA

          5  inspectors are under your jurisdiction.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm trying to

          8  figure out how do you -- you mentioned 2,126

          9  licenses have been in the system for quite a while.

         10  They're not new.  Four hundred have applied that are

         11  new businesses, but not necessarily new licenses.

         12  How do we know that all 2,126 licenses are conducive

         13  to the environment we're living in now, as opposed

         14  to ten years ago?

         15                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, I think

         16  that that is a very good question, and I think the

         17  task force, if we could work on how that evolves,

         18  might be able to help figure out a mechanism for

         19  determining that.  The current two pieces of

         20  legislation together, and we as the people who have

         21  to administer this all, it's hard for us to separate

         22  them.  But together, they put a burden on businesses

         23  in the City. But I think that what we do, is when

         24  someone applies for a five- foot license, we double-

         25  check to make sure the adequate sidewalk is clear.
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          2                 If we go out and there's a stoop line

          3  stand with boxes all around, we issue a violation.

          4  And we take them seriously, and I'm sure the

          5  representatives of the stoop line stands will tell

          6  you very clearly that they think we do our job a

          7  little too well. But we're there.

          8                 And we'd be happy to work with the

          9  Council to figure out a mechanism to identify where

         10  problems really exist, and then work to solve those

         11  problems.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Commissioner,

         13  as far as the 400 new licenses, those are the ones

         14  that you will also -- they are all licensed in the

         15  past, they had been licensed in the past -- you will

         16  go to each one of those sites to then give approval

         17  or disapproval to DCA?

         18                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: At DCA, we look

         19  at the paperwork, make sure it's all compliant, and

         20  then, if it's an application for a five- foot stand,

         21  we send out our inspectors to make sure the clear

         22  path is there before we issue the license.  If it's

         23  for a four- foot stand, we would just inspect that

         24  in the course of regular inspections.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: To reiterate,
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          2  those 400 locations will be inspected, not presumed

          3  okay because they've been licensed in the past.

          4                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The ones -- the

          5  applications for five- foot stands, which is a

          6  subset of the 400, would be inspected prior to

          7  getting their paperwork, their license to operate.

          8  The others would be inspected in the course of

          9  regular enforcement. They wouldn't be inspected

         10  prior to the issuance of a license.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm sorry.  I'm

         12  trying to speak the same language.  To you it makes

         13  sense because you do this on a daily basis. To me,

         14  it's just getting more confusing as you mention it

         15  over and over again.  The 400 applications, are a

         16  combination of new locations that have had licenses

         17  in the past. Correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: They're by and

         19  large, all locations that have been licensed.

         20  They're new owners of existing licenses.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But there's a

         22  combination of three- feet, five feet.

         23                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, three feet

         24  doesn't enter the stoop line stand world.  That is

         25  only the street obstruction world.  Stoop line
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          2  stands, if you sell fruits, vegetables, tobacco, ice

          3  cream, cut flowers, confections in your business,

          4  you can apply to hold a stoop line stand license

          5  under the law.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

          7                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: There's been a

          8  fairly steady number of stoop line stand licenses in

          9  the City.  There's not very many brand new

         10  applicants for a new stoop line stand.  If you come

         11  and you apply to take over an existing stand, we

         12  would do due diligence, but then issue a license to

         13  you.  Unless your stand was -- you were applying to

         14  reissue a five- foot stand license, where we would

         15  double- check the sidewalk.  That would be the

         16  process that we would currently follow.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So there would

         18  only be a review if there's a five- foot request.

         19                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.  Except

         20  during the regular course of enforcement, we're out

         21  and we're inspecting for everything.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You mentioned

         23  how there's going to be an added cost to conduct

         24  over 2,000 stoop line stands inspections of $1

         25  million to the agency.  But wouldn't this already be
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          2  a cost upon the agency assuming you had been already

          3  conducting inspections?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The cost would

          5  be to the Department of Transportation to now begin

          6  to go out and physically, not just inspect every

          7  single one of those 2,000 plus stoop line stands.

          8  But go out and do an analysis of pedestrian traffic

          9  in front of that stand.  Because that would be the

         10  requirement of 699.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But

         12  Commissioner Woloch, going back to what had -- and

         13  I'm quoting, it is a good idea that we go back and

         14  figure out, because times have changed over the

         15  course of let's say the last ten years, licenses

         16  that are being approved, that have consistently been

         17  approved in the past, to just continue approving

         18  them in the present, because there hasn't been a

         19  complaint, or if they're of compliance, but we

         20  haven't visited or made an analysis.  It's crucial

         21  to just safety pedestrian.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Absolutely.

         23  We're happy to look at this issue and I think you're

         24  right, that taking a step back and looking at the

         25  whole universe of items that are on the sidewalks,
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          2  is appropriate.  And again, that's why we agree with

          3  the spirit of Councilman Comrie's bill.  But the

          4  problem is, and this a problem with 699, is without

          5  waiting to do that, and jumping in, requiring by law

          6  a mandatory inspection of every single one of the

          7  2,000 sites, doesn't seem to be honing in on the

          8  problem and it requires an enormous expenditure.  An

          9  it certainly isn't warranted without taking that

         10  kind of step back that you're referring to.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so your

         12  agency is willing to do the analysis in order to

         13  start observing where the problems exist?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We're willing to

         15  think about where an analysis might be necessary.

         16  As most of the stoop line stands don't pose a

         17  problem, as most of them occupy the space that

         18  they're supposed to be on --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What I'm trying

         20  to understand is how do you know that if perhaps

         21  these sites have not been revisited.  And they

         22  haven't been complained about.  And perhaps they

         23  were approved 10, 20 years ago.  And the current

         24  situation is not what it used to be.  We're

         25  approving more sidewalk cafes in recent times
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          2  compared to 10, 20 years ago.  Are we taking that

          3  into consideration?  Is that part of an analysis

          4  that's being conducted with DOT and DCA?  And I'm

          5  just throwing situations here, I don't know if

          6  that's the case.  I'm trying to figure out what is

          7  the complication that DOT and DCA is truly concerned

          8  about in moving forward with something that's good

          9  in spirit, but not good on paper.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, the thing

         11  is, with 699, everything has to happen immediately.

         12  And there is nearly impossible for the City to do

         13  that.  These businesses, maybe there are problems

         14  there, but they provide a valid function for many

         15  New Yorkers.  We think they're great.  We think

         16  sidewalk cafes are great.  I think the Department,

         17  the Administration's view is that we would like to

         18  sit down, work on a system that would actually

         19  figure out what is the problem and address the

         20  problem, rather than throwing resources at something

         21  that isn't actually a problem.  I think you have the

         22  issue, --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That point is well

         24  taken.  I just want to move it along, because we're

         25  running out of time here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

          3  much Mr. Chair. Thank you Commissioners.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

          5  Council Member Reyna.  Council Member Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: First of all,

          7  just to clarify, because I think some of my

          8  colleagues are confused, and I want to make sure

          9  we're right.  The stoop line stand licenses are only

         10  given to businesses that sell fruit, vegetables, ice

         11  cream and flowers.

         12                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: And they could

         13  sell tobacco as well.  But that doesn't happen --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But that's

         15  it.  So when people sell clothes on the sidewalk --

         16                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That's a sidewalk

         17  obstruction.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- Sell

         19  housewares on the sidewalk, that has nothing to do

         20  with this bill, or 699.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  And

         23  there are 2,000 of these.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And 699
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          2  requires -- how often do you renew a license?

          3                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Every two years.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  And

          5  this says, no license may be issued -- I'm reading

          6  from 699 -- no license may be issued or renewed

          7  unless the Commission has received a written

          8  certification from the Department of Transportation

          9  that the issuance or renewal of such license will

         10  not have an adverse affect on pedestrian safety, and

         11  will not pose an obstruction of free use of

         12  sidewalks by pedestrians.  In order to issue such

         13  certification, the Department of Transportation

         14  shall conduct an on- site analysis of pedestrian

         15  traffic volume, and prepare a report on its finding.

         16  The report shall contain the data to reach its

         17  conclusion, attest to the Department determination

         18  that such stoop line stand would not have an adverse

         19  affect on pedestrian safety, nor pose an obstruction

         20  to the free use of the sidewalk pedestrians, and

         21  describe the methodology used.  That is the study

         22  that will cost $1 million if we do it for the 2,000.

         23    Is that correct, Commissioner.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  So
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          2  that's the detailed study required by 699.  And you

          3  don't think it's necessary.  Is that correct?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: For every one of

          5  those sites, absolutely not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  And,

          7  if in fact, the determination was made by the

          8  Department of Transportation that it did obstruct

          9  pedestrian traffic, then, a new license could not be

         10  renewed.  Is that correct, Commissioner Toole?

         11                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  So

         13  while Councilman Comrie, who is unfortunately not

         14  here, talked about a moratorium, that moratorium

         15  would only exist if the stoop line was out of

         16  compliance with the size requirement.  But the

         17  moratorium would not exist if it was deemed to be

         18  inappropriate all together. Correct? Because he has

         19  the 30- day, where you can't take the license away,

         20  in 731.  Is that a really a moratorium?  You talked

         21  about a moratorium.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think it would

         23  go back to the question of does the bill stand alone

         24  or is it in conjunction with 699.  If 699 were to

         25  become law also, then inherently, there wouldn't be

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  a moratorium.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So there

          4  isn't really a moratorium.  Right.  Okay.  So let me

          5  just say, Mr. Chairman, because I have to go next

          6  door, Land Use Committee.  That the idea of having a

          7  task force to study this issue is a good one.  I

          8  support it.  But we're putting the cart before the

          9  horse.  Because we're creating the task force to

         10  help enforce a law that you, yourself indicated, Mr.

         11  Chairman, you want to pass over the veto, to help

         12  enforce a law that I believe is flawed.  Now maybe

         13  the task force, after we create it, will show that

         14  I'm wrong, and say that this is a good idea, 699.

         15  If that happens, perhaps I'd even be willing to vote

         16  for it.  I don't think that's going to happen,

         17  because I think 699 places unusual burdens on the

         18  Department of Transportation and by extension, on

         19  the  owners of the stoop lines.

         20                 So I'm against 699 right now.  Maybe

         21  a task a force would change my mind.  Mr. Chairman,

         22  if you indicate that you want to create a task force

         23  to study this issue so that next year, after that

         24  study, we can consider further legislation, if

         25  required, or we can make recommendations to DOT and
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          2  Department of Consumer Affairs for better

          3  enforcement, I'm prepared to support a task force.

          4                 I might say, the task force

          5  legislation needs a little additional work.  But

          6  generally speaking, I support the idea of task

          7  force.  But not a task force to enforce 699, which

          8  is what is contemplated here.  And so, Mr. Chairman,

          9  while I support the concept of a task force, and

         10  would be more than willing to work with you, Mr.

         11  Chairman, on creating a task force which would be

         12  similar to this bill, although I think there are a

         13  few things we'd want to change, we should not put

         14  the cart in front of the horse. Let's create the

         15  task force.  Once we've created the task force,

         16  which is the horse, we can then create the cart,

         17  which is the new regulations if required.  So let's

         18  not put the cart before the horse.  Let's go with

         19  the horse.  And Mr. Chairman, if you assure us that

         20  you  won't move the veto, I'll work with you rapidly

         21  in the next 24 hours, to do a task force bill which

         22  will be very similar to this bill, and we can move

         23  ahead together.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         25  Member Koppell.
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          2                 Let me just say that again, Intro.

          3  No. 731 can and will operate independently of Intro.

          4  No. 699.  Many of the concerns that are being voiced

          5  by the Administration today are about 699, and not

          6  about 731.  So we are going to vote on 731.

          7                 As far as putting the cart before the

          8  horse. Actually, the problem is that for the last 20

          9  years, the cart has been put before the horse.  The

         10  cart has been roaming, and barreling down the

         11  sidewalks of the City for too long unchecked by the

         12  City government, by the Department of

         13  Transportation.  The problem, it certainly is not

         14  limited to the people who run the Department of

         15  Transportation today.  It has been going on for 20

         16  years.

         17                 You state, you read very clearly, the

         18  provisions or the new law as would be provided for

         19  by Intro. No. 699, but I would like to also add, so

         20  that everybody understands it, what the current law

         21  is.  And the current law is actually not that

         22  different from the new law.  The new law is more

         23  emphatic in that the Department of Transportation,

         24  not Consumer Affairs, it has nothing to do with the

         25  Consumer Affairs Department.  It has everything to
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          2  do with the Transportation Department.

          3                 The reason why I say that the cart

          4  has been put forth before the horse, is that these

          5  stands have been continuously rubber- stamped

          6  without the Department of Transportation upholding

          7  the law.  Right now, the law says, Any stand

          8  required to be licensed as such stoop line stand,

          9  shall not be licensed unless the location has been

         10  approved by the Department of Transportation. But

         11  they have not been providing any of these approvals.

         12    And so, Consumer Affairs has no choice but to just

         13  go ahead with it, because the Department of

         14  Transportation has done nothing.

         15                 We will revisit this issue.  We have

         16  questions from Council Member Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you Mr.

         18  Chair.  And good morning.

         19                 I have just a few questions for

         20  clarification.  One is that the Department of

         21  Consumer Affairs issues the licenses. The DOT only

         22  approves whether there are safety hazards or not.

         23  Or they're hazardous, or if they're okay on the

         24  safety issue.  There was, for some time, confusion

         25  because it's very similar to the news stands and
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          2  what you do with that.  And when there are new

          3  licenses, you do go out and see them.

          4                 I have to say that I really object to

          5  having a task force to do what the Department should

          6  be doing.  Why have you not been able to look at the

          7  safety over the 20 years that has been rambling?

          8  You say you've had no complaints.  I don't know if

          9  you have called any community boards.  There are 59

         10  in the City of New York.  I know that in the boards

         11  I called, each one of them had a major problem with

         12  this.  But it seems to me that it's in your power to

         13  develop some rules and regulations, and if you need

         14  the money for that, it behooves the agency to come

         15  during budget time to say why you need that.  That's

         16  one, and it seems to me that that has not happened,

         17  nor do I think you have been in touch with community

         18  boards.

         19                 I do not think that we should

         20  legislate what is within the agency's power to do.

         21  If you have had difficulty in doing that, then you

         22  should come to the Council, or whoever those powers

         23  to be are.

         24                 I do not like self- certification.

         25  But since you have 2,000 that all expire at the same
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          2  time, which I happen to think is not a disadvantage,

          3  because it gets you to implement some rules that you

          4  could do without having to spread this over a year,

          5  for a two- year recertification.   The fact is, that

          6  is one area that I would not object to, if they were

          7  to recertify themselves that they are not within

          8  safety, not creating hazardous conditions. Every

          9  community board would know that.  The complaints go

         10  to the community board, and the violations should be

         11  treated very seriously.  And that comes to your

         12  Department, or Consumer Affairs.             And how

         13  many of those violations do they get before they

         14  lose their license?  Nobody wants the small business

         15  man to lose his license.  At the same time, you need

         16  to be creative on how you deal with this, because it

         17  is an issue that has proliferated.

         18                 But I must say, at the same time, I

         19  don't think we should use the law to do what

         20  agencies are not either empowered to do, where you

         21  have sought help and haven't gotten it.  I have

         22  difficulty with the stoop things.  I have just told

         23  the Chairman I would not vote for the override.  And

         24  I think that the two do go together.  And I think

         25  that -- tell me, why have you had difficulty looking
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          2  at these 2,000?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I can't speak

          4  for the past 20 years, but it's not a question of

          5  having difficulty.  It's a question of what are

          6  people really complaining about?  And going back to

          7  your point earlier, based on the experience of the

          8  Department of Consumer Affairs has had, when

          9  complaints have come in about clutter on the

         10  sidewalks, and again, going back to our discussion

         11  earlier, there are a lot of different elements.  And

         12  very few of them, very few of those cases turn out

         13  to be legal stoop line stands that are taking up the

         14  four or five feet that are allowed --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I get a lot of

         16  those in my office.  And when they find out they

         17  were in the law, they were quite surprised.  So I

         18  agree.  There's mass confusion as to what they

         19  consider clutter, clothes being sold out, if they're

         20  within three feet, they're within their rights.  As

         21  their license permits. Stoop lines are something

         22  else.  Because they continue to go out and out and

         23  out.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That's a

         25  violation.  That's a violation.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's a

          3  different point.  And I think that's extremely

          4  important, and I think some of your colleagues have

          5  articulated the same point earlier in the hearing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, but what

          7  do you do about it?  That's the violation, not the

          8  stoop lines.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Consumer Affairs

         10  will go out and will give a violation.  And I think

         11  that's a very important point.  At the end of the

         12  day, a very small piece of the clutter that is

         13  perceived, and we do get calls about that, about

         14  sidewalk clutter, and they turn out to be legal

         15  stoop line stands that have taken up too much space,

         16  illegal stoop line stands, illegal obstructions.

         17  And so, to hone in on the legal stoop line stands

         18  doesn't get at the issue.

         19                 I think you're right.  There are a

         20  lot of community boards that do have complaints.

         21  More generally about sidewalk clutter.  But if you

         22  look at what the violations turn out to be, very few

         23  of them turn out to relate to legal stoop line

         24  stands.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: How do you feel
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          2  about self certification?  For your 2,000 and the

          3  400 whatever that are new? I think that with extreme

          4  penalties --

          5                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think that that

          6  is something that is worth talking about.  I think

          7  that off the cuff, we don't know.  We have to look

          8  at how do you insure that --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, but do

         10  you need a task force to tell you exactly how you

         11  can implement your regulations? That's what I think

         12  is --

         13                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That's not part

         14  of our regulations, Councilwoman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well you have

         16  to do the inspections, am I not wrong about that?

         17                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We inspect for

         18  violations of the law, and we --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.  So in

         20  order to do those inspections, my question is, why

         21  would you need a task force to help you develop how

         22  you do it?

         23                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't think the

         24  purpose of the task force --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me clarify.  The
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          2  Department of Consumer Affairs is not requesting a

          3  task force, we are through this Intro.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chairman, I

          5  understand that very well.  Thank you.  The fact is

          6  that, the proposed thing that we're voting on today,

          7  is so that there would be a task force to actually

          8  assist the DOT, and how would you go about meeting

          9  your responsibilities?  I happen to think that's a

         10  bad idea.  I really do.  I think it's an obligation

         11  of the agency that you should be able to come up

         12  with how you meet your responsibilities.  The only

         13  time a law should be imposed, is if you absolutely

         14  cannot do it, and then you come to us to assist you

         15  in that matter.

         16                 And if it becomes a financial one,

         17  I'm on the Finance Committee, and I'm in this

         18  Council four years, will be.  I don't think I have

         19  ever heard DOT come before the Finance Committee and

         20  say that you are not empowered to impose the rules

         21  because of lack of inspectors.  You have never done

         22  that.  And I don't think I have missed a meeting.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's correct.

         24  We haven't done that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So is that
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          2  something that is doable?  I'm actually on your

          3  side, but at the same time, I think the fact that

          4  you haven't -- it's not a question of sides, so I

          5  take that back -- I just think the laws need to be

          6  developed to protect the public.  I don't think they

          7  should be used in how you develop the operations of

          8  meeting your responsibility.  I believe that's an

          9  internal structure.  And if you need help to do

         10  that, then the Council can do that.

         11                 So what I'm asking you, that I don't

         12  believe you need a task force with all due respect,

         13  and I love my colleagues, and they know that, and we

         14  get along extremely well.  But I think that the law

         15  is used for other things, and not how you operate

         16  your agency.

         17                 So I think that you need to come

         18  before the Finance Committee, and I think you need

         19  to consider something like self certification,

         20  developing a very simple form that it doesn't take

         21  10 pages to do, and then, with Consumer Affairs

         22  issuing it, every, all 59 boards, and 51 Council

         23  Members should know when you do that, because we are

         24  the ones who get the complaints. And at that point,

         25  we forward them on to you.  And certain the
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          2  community boards would. So I somehow think that you

          3  need to put a little more together.  Is that

          4  possible?  Mr. Chairman, for this agency?

          5                 CHAIRMAN LIU: Well, perhaps I can

          6  clarify one point. The task force certainly is not

          7  being set up to assist the Department of

          8  Transportation and the Department of Consumer

          9  Affairs in the way they regulate stoop lines stands.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What is the

         11  responsibility?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The responsibility

         13  is to ensure that the Department of Consumer Affairs

         14  and the Department of Transportation does not go

         15  overboard in overzealously complying with the law.

         16  And the precedents for task force --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well then it's

         18  a monitoring position.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Absolutely.  The

         20  precedents for task forces have been well grounded.

         21  For example, three years ago, the Department of

         22  Transportation asked the City Council to come up

         23  with regulations or come up with legislation that

         24  would allow them to regulate news racks on the

         25  sidewalk of New York City.

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's true.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And based on that,

          4  there was a task force.  It was a task force not

          5  required by legislation, but nonetheless, the task

          6  force operated fully in making sure that the

          7  Department of Transportation would not overzealously

          8  enforce the laws provided by that new news rack

          9  legislation, which was actually spearheaded by

         10  Council Member Eva Moskowitz.

         11                 We have now questions from Council

         12  Member Gonzolez. Oh, okay.

         13                 Thank you very much.  I want to thank

         14  everybody in the public who is here with us for your

         15  patience, we're going to move along with this.  I do

         16  have a couple of things that I want my colleagues to

         17  be very clear on, and the general public to be very

         18  clear on.  There was a lot of testimony provided

         19  today by the Administration.  Almost all of it was

         20  provided by the Department of Consumer Affairs,

         21  which is actually, not your germane to Intro. No.

         22  699, which happens to be the subject of most

         23  contention here. There is a clear distinction

         24  between what stores are able to use their sidewalks

         25  for.  Stoop line stands are very specific, and so
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          2  are legal sidewalk obstructions as provided for in

          3  the DOT, Deputy Commissioner Woloch's testimony.

          4  Sidewalk obstructions that are legally permitted,

          5  are permitted except in areas where general vending

          6  is disallowed.  That is what the DOT testified

          7  today.  General vending is disallowed in areas that

          8  are heavily congested.  But unfortunately, that does

          9  not apply to the stoop line stands as well.  So we

         10  are trying to close a loophole that exists in the

         11  law right now.  If an area is determined to be too

         12  congested for legal obstructions, the same standard

         13  should be applied to stoop line stands.

         14                 We are not picking on stores that

         15  have stoop line stands today.  What we are trying to

         16  do is to get the DOT to do its job of ensuring

         17  sidewalk safety and space for pedestrians in this

         18  City.  The DOT already does that with regard to

         19  sidewalk cafes, with regard to sidewalk news stands,

         20  with regard to the regulation of news racks on

         21  sidewalks.  The implementation of bus stop shelters

         22  on sidewalks.  Almost everything on our sidewalks

         23  the DOT has some mechanism for.  But for some odd

         24  reason, the Department of Transportation refuses to

         25  uphold its obligations when it comes to the approval
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          2  of stoop line stands.  The current law, again,

          3  already states that these stands can only be

          4  approved if the DOT approves that location.  But the

          5  DOT does not even participate in the application

          6  process, the approval process for these permits.

          7                 The mere fact that the Department of

          8  Consumer Affairs rubber- stamps all 2,136 stands on

          9  the same day, is proof positive that the Department

         10  of Transportation does absolutely nothing with

         11  regard to this.

         12                 And finally, I will say that this

         13  whole concept of all the stands expiring on the same

         14  day.  Nothing in law requires that.  That is simply

         15  something that the Department of Consumer Affairs

         16  has done for its convenience, which is fine.  But

         17  there is certainly nothing to stop the Department of

         18  Consumer Affairs from staggering the renewal of

         19  these stands so that there would be enough time for

         20  the Department of Transportation to do its job.

         21                 The DOT says, with one hand, that

         22  they are willing to work with us to address the

         23  concerns and the problems, and even the DOT will

         24  acknowledge that there are problems in some

         25  locations. But then, on the other hand, they say
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          2  they have absolutely no complaints, and it is,

          3  according to the testimony provided today, a problem

          4  that doesn't exist.  Which is it?  So to sum it all

          5  up, the task force is meant to make sure that the

          6  City, through the Departments of Transportation and

          7  Consumer Affairs does not go overboard in regulating

          8  the stoop line stands.

          9                 And if you will recall the language

         10  being used by the Administration consistently, they

         11  refer to 731 and 699 as a means to inspect the

         12  sidewalk stands.  That is absolutely not the case.

         13  This legislation, particularly Intro. No. 699, is

         14  requiring the DOT to uphold it's responsibilities

         15  and obligations to examine sidewalks.  Not inspect

         16  stands.  Examine sidewalks.  And unfortunately, it

         17  has come to this where we have come to a very big

         18  disagreement with the Department of Transportation

         19  over something that really should have been very

         20  simple, that we could have addressed up front.

         21                 So this is where we are.  I want to

         22  thank the Departments of Transportation and Consumer

         23  Affairs for coming out to give us your comments on

         24  this.  Regardless of the outcome, I certainly look

         25  forward to working together with you.  Again, this
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          2  is not about inspecting stands, and inspecting

          3  stores.  It is about examining the space on our

          4  sidewalks and making sure that the space is

          5  properly, and adequately allocated for pedestrians.

          6  Because that's the primary reason that sidewalks

          7  were built.  And that's straight out of the

          8  Administrative Code.

          9                 I want to thank you for joining us

         10  today.  I want to move this along.  We have a panel

         11  to testify on stoop line stands and then finally, we

         12  will enter the substance of this hearing, which is

         13  the private enforcement of traffic rules and

         14  regulations.

         15                 COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Councilman, if I

         16  may, I don't want Councilman Martinez to walk out of

         17  here thinking that in our offer to go through his

         18  neighborhood and look at stands, that we are talking

         19  about a ticket blitz.  What we are talking about is

         20  something that we did with Councilman Liu back in

         21  2002, in the Summer, when we took a map of the

         22  district, and showed where stands or obstructions

         23  were legal or illegal, and we translated the

         24  materials into Korean so that they would be

         25  understanding as an educational effort, so we'd be
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          2  happy to do that in your district as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Commissioner, again,

          4  I will remind you of that June, 2002 visit, where

          5  you were going to come out and stipulate clearly for

          6  all the businesses where the lines could, how far

          7  out they could come out.  And the evening right

          8  before that visit to Flushing, you realized that

          9  that entire area of downtown Flushing is an area

         10  that prohibits general vending.  And so that entire

         11  exercise was moot to begin with.  But the problem

         12  was that the stoop line stands were not covered in

         13  the same way as the legalized obstructions, even

         14  though they have the exact same impact on the

         15  sidewalks.  Again, it is not an issue that we have

         16  with the Department of Consumer Affairs.  I think

         17  the small businesses have an issue with the way

         18  Consumer Affairs has been enforcing some of the

         19  regulations.

         20                 Our issue here, with these two bills,

         21  is simply with the Department of Transportation's

         22  inability and refusal to acknowledge that this is a

         23  problem that they have to deal with, and that they

         24  have to, under the laws, under current laws,

         25  obligated to examine.
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          2                 Thank you very much.  I want to call

          3  the next panel to testify.  We have Hee Won Kang,

          4  from KAGRO;  Albert Shin, from the Korean Produce

          5  Association; Young Tai Kim, the President of the

          6  Korean Produce Association; and Hyo Sun Eor, from

          7  the KASBS; and Richard Lipsky, from the Neighborhood

          8  Retail Alliance.

          9                 Gentlemen, please proceed in any

         10  order that you wish.  Mr. Kim, you're leading off?

         11                 MR. KIM: Thank you Chairman Liu.

         12                 CHAIRMAN LIU: Please keep your

         13  comments concise.

         14                 MR. KIM: All right.  We came here

         15  together, representing the aspect of a trade jointly

         16  representing over 2,000 stoop line operators in the

         17  City.  I would like to get your special permission

         18  to extend my testimony hours, not three minutes.

         19  And also I have kind of a crayon draw, so I am

         20  appealing to your authority to allow me the

         21  extension of my testimony beyond three minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I would ask you to

         23  limit your testimony to three minutes, given that

         24  just a few days ago, we went back and forth on this

         25  issue with this Committee and yourself for over an
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          2  hour.

          3                 MR. KIM: Well, at this time, it was

          4  Intro. No. 731 I prepared now --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And today, the topic

          6  is simply Intro. No. 731, so please proceed, Mr.

          7  Kim.

          8                 MR. KIM: Thank you Chairman.  I

          9  prepare the testimony paper so, and also another

         10  appeal to this Committee and your authority.  Please

         11  Council Members, Committee members, please don't

         12  leave us, stay with us a couple of minutes, until I

         13  finish my testimony because it's very, very

         14  important, a real opportunity for us to bring about

         15  issues to the concern of Council Members, Committee

         16  members, that agree face to face.

         17                 The Intro. No. 731- A amended, and

         18  even though a couple of sponsors said stands are

         19  wrong, which has no connection with Intro. No. 699,

         20  but I believe that it is clear, evidence has shown

         21  731- A does precondition the passage of Intro. No.

         22  699.  All the way down, first page, if you see the

         23  Section 20, there's line 239b of Intro. 731- A you

         24  can see there's a cure and appeal clause that's a

         25  clear manifestation that Intro. 731- a preconditions
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          2  the passage of Intro. No. 699.  Without 699 becoming

          3  a law, Intro. No. 731- A, especially the clause of

          4  Section 20, lines 231b doesn't function.  So

          5  legally, formally, 731- A is an instrument for the

          6  passage of Intro. No 699. That's our conclusion.

          7                 The role of a task force, as Council

          8  Member Koppell mentioned, I absolutely agree with

          9  him, to this point.  Task force is a good concept,

         10  nobody denies the value of this task force.  But the

         11  task force should never be part of the passing of

         12  the bill. But task force has no binding force, no

         13  authority, so it doesn't help the small business

         14  from any what do you call, the reinforcements by

         15  City agencies.  But the content itself, 731- A

         16  doesn't help the small business at all.

         17                 We believe it most look like some

         18  kind of excuse to have Intro. 699 passed.  So we

         19  support the task force, but it should be come in

         20  different time and situation, not involving in 699.

         21                 I just will bring up to the attention

         22  of the Council Members one very, very important

         23  figures --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up, Mr.

         25  Kim.
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          2                 MR. KIM: Okay.  Councilman, Chairman

          3  Liu assert that one of the main rationale for

          4  introducing 699- A and along with 731 A is that the

          5  sidewalks, there is a serious sidewalk problem in

          6  the City, and according to latest information

          7  obtained, given the figure, the City has a 30

          8  percent improvement sidewalk safety. Page two of my

          9  testimony clearly sees the figures.  In 1999, the

         10  complaints DCA received was 19,000 something.  In

         11  2002, it shows 10,810; and last year, it all way

         12  went down to 610.  I know.  It's not the all the

         13  explanation, but even this figure still stands for

         14  good evidence that we don't need the 699 stuff.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Mr. Kim, I

         16  appreciate your testimony here, and again, all of

         17  your points have been entered into the public record

         18  through previous testimony.  We have dozens of

         19  people here who are testifying today.  And everyone

         20  will be subject to the three- minute limit, except

         21  members of the Administration with whom we have an

         22  issue with.  So I'd like to ask the next person to

         23  provide the testimony.  Again, the more time you

         24  take, the more time you're taking away from the

         25  other people who are here to testify as well.
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          2                 Thank you.  I can ask Mr. Young Tae

          3  Kim, the distinguished President of the Korean

          4  Produce Association.

          5                 MR. KIM: I'm speaking on -- I'm here

          6  for them, so that's why I asked to give us more

          7  time.  We agree that --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, that's fine.

          9  So you're going to take Mr. Kim's time, and Mr.

         10  Albert's.  Three people.  So actually, I can have

         11  nine minutes.  But I'll take just three minutes

         12  more, okay?  Can I do that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Go ahead.

         14                 MR. KIM: You are certainly right.  I

         15  just did all the dirty work to relay our position

         16  and our position along with some suggested

         17  alternative.  Solutions to the orientation of a few

         18  Council Members, over five times.  You received all

         19  my mail. Federal Express, meetings, and through two

         20  rallies.  So I'll have to repeat again.  I just want

         21  to show a couple of figures again to attention.

         22  First of all, the pressing issue, questions right in

         23  this row.  Whether those 20 years of the DOT

         24  negligence of duty created a serious sidewalk safety

         25  problem or not, throw aside existing the City
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          2  agencies, DCA, is actually overdoing this.  Over

          3  enforcing us.  Over 17 existing codes -- you can see

          4  the pink stuff like this -- there are 17 City codes,

          5  existing codes.  If the stoop line stand violated

          6  twice within two years, the license is suspended.

          7  Revoked.  Strict, strict enforcement.  If you see

          8  the 17 codes, it's more than enough.  City street

          9  sidewalk is perfectly in doing it.

         10                 Now, one of the two questions.  All

         11  of the questions, and then the discussion of this

         12  floor today is about the clutter stoop line stands

         13  is one of them, is one of the three clutters.  Now

         14  you have to understand that we still feel very

         15  strongly resentment, resentment against the City

         16  Council because, because if you see the Intro. 6 --

         17  I'll hold my testimony because Chairman Liu is not

         18  listening to me, and then Councilwoman Helen Sears

         19  is not listening to me.  No, this is very important.

         20    Real opportunity for us.  This is the first time

         21   --

         22                 If you look at this Intro. 621, which

         23  Councilman Liu is one of the sponsors, now the 621

         24  now intends to increase the vendors three times,

         25  while Intro. 699 is trying to kill licensed stoop
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          2  line stands.  Reduce the numbers of the stand.  And

          3  from the community's side, our side, we feel very

          4  strong resentment against this what we feel

          5  unfairness.  Now, Council is trying to increase the

          6  numbers in streets, fruit vendors, I don't know, the

          7  street vendors, while 699 is aiming at reducing

          8  stoop line stand, actually to our language, is

          9  killing.

         10                 MR. KIM:  Now you have another three

         11  minutes, because you're testifying for three people.

         12    It takes three people to match your skills.  Go

         13  ahead.  Three minutes, please

         14                 MR. KIM: Three more minutes.  If you

         15  see another chart we just prepared, this is a clear

         16  view of the unfairness, we feel.  If you see the

         17  licensed stoop line stand versus previous vendors on

         18  the street, over eight City codes, we are thoroughly

         19  enforced to abide by the laws regulation code.

         20  While food vendors, I'm talking about fruit vendors

         21  outside, they are immune.  I strongly, over six

         22  months have contacted Councilwoman Gale Brewer, and

         23  the DOT, DCA, everybody to enforce some vendors on

         24  the street at 92nd Street and Broadway.  I got a

         25  heck of a lot of letters from the agencies.  They
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          2  said we cannot help you.  We don't have a piece to

          3  regulate the food vendors on the street.  This is

          4  false.  And you have to understand, because why the

          5  government is doing -- look at this chart.  Clearly,

          6  clearly these people are in vain, stoop line license

          7  to line stands are strictly enforced.

          8                 Two more very important figures I

          9  have to bring up to your attention one more time.

         10  Small business, as a whole, has been in crisis.  The

         11  bankruptcy 2004, it's five county court recorded

         12  figures, 37 percent increase, the highest of

         13  history, record- breaking bankruptcy small business

         14  the City could have. You've got to understand this

         15  situation.  So whatever it is at any rate,

         16  Introduction of 699 is not the right time.  There

         17  are so many confusions and problems that this

         18  criteria of onsite analysis represents to safety.

         19                 Let me give you a finally, so what

         20  I'm saying, is it's not the right time for this

         21  context.  We believe that if the right gesture on

         22  the government, the right gesture for the government

         23  is clear, and clear, and relief instead of always

         24  putting additional regulation like Intro. 699,

         25  choking our neck.
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          2                 Now, the lastly one comment.  I can

          3  give you a very clear sensory picture why we are

          4  posing this way, 699 as of this, of 731-A.  Okay.

          5  We are froggies.  You can see the test, okay?

          6  Strollers, is City Council.  You are elected

          7  officers, the strollers are throw stones into the

          8  pond.  Stone means the authors of Intro of 699 has

          9  indicated that onsite and the rest is over

         10  pedestrian traffic volume.  This is stones.  You

         11  throw it into the pond.  Pond is the neighborhood

         12  friendly fruit stores. --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Kim, I have to

         14  ask you to summarize.

         15                 MR. KIM: Okay, just 30 seconds.  I'm

         16  sorry.  I have a crayon draw.  I'd like a crayon

         17  draw.  Now, we have 200 froggies in the pond.  We

         18  are the innocently, unexpectedly killed.  This is

         19  why we oppose Intro. 699.

         20                 So I'm not  saying that Councilman

         21  Liu intended to kill us, but should happen to be

         22  that we 200 fruit stores will be killed out of the

         23  City for 699.

         24                 One more thing.  One more analogy to

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up, Mr.

          3  Kim.

          4                 MR. KIM: Just one analogy.  One

          5  sentence very clear. We got in 631- A and 699- A.

          6  These two bills, we call twin bills, the Chairman

          7  Liu and the Committee is going to get a disease,

          8  incurable disease.  Disease means 699 to us, and

          9  then at the same time, through 731, it tried to cure

         10  us.  Medicine.  But it's incurable, infected, and

         11  very confusing medicine.  So we in conclusion, we

         12  are strongly opposing both Intro. 699 which is

         13  unprepared, is very risky, and as well as 631- A,

         14  very confusing. Both, as you know, kind of usurp

         15  ready to make the City Council authority. So this is

         16  something not good, it's not democratic.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Mr.

         18  Lipsky.

         19                 MR. LIPSKY: Thank you Mr. Chair.  My

         20  name is Richard Lipsky.  I'm here for the

         21  Neighborhood Retail Alliance.

         22                 I had a conversation with Jose

         23  Fernandez, that of the Bodego Association last week,

         24  and he wants the Council to know that he is in

         25  solidarity with Mr. Kim and the National Supermarket

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Association and the rest of the trade groups here in

          3  opposition to 731, and also to 699.

          4                 It looks as if the Council is trying

          5  to in effect, pass a bill to remedy the defects of

          6  the first bill that they passed, and one would argue

          7  that the best thing to do is to go back and remedy

          8  the first bill before passing legislation. It

          9  reminds us of what a philosopher once said about a

         10  critic of his, he seeks a synthesis and only

         11  achieves his composite error.

         12                 We're here today, and I think it's an

         13  unusual situation when you see people like us here

         14  today in support of the Administration stand.  We

         15  are generally on the other side when it comes to

         16  regulation.  And I think that what the Commissioner

         17  said, and also Councilman Koppell, I think was right

         18  on point here.  This bill 731, has a useful

         19  component, which is the task force.  Let's use the

         20  task force to do the due diligence to determine what

         21  the extent of the problem is, or isn't.

         22                 We don't think that it is necessary

         23  if you -- let me give you an example -- The

         24  newsstand operators, and I spoke to Rob Bookman, who

         25  represents them, are subject to the same traffic
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          2  analysis.  It is a very complicated traffic

          3  analysis.  It takes quite a bit of personnel and it

          4  needs to be done very carefully. If you look at the

          5  formulas, it's like quadratic equations to figure

          6  out traffic flow, versus obstruction.  The

          7  newsstands only have two or three turnovers a year,

          8  and it takes months to do these kinds of studies.

          9  Now you're going to have 2,100 fruit stands

         10  functioning with the Department of Traffic

         11  inspectors coming down, it's going to create havoc.

         12  And who is going to pay for the havoc?

         13                 The legitimate store owners are going

         14  to have to pay for the cost of the increased

         15  inspectors, because what normally happens, is the

         16  Council in all of its well- meaning intent, passes a

         17  law, and then wants to ensure that the law is

         18  enforced properly, fines are increased, revenue is

         19  generated, inspectors are added, and then what

         20  happens is, the industry, the sector is forced to

         21  pay for the enforcement.  That $1 million figure is

         22  coming out of all the stores.

         23                 I agree with Mr. Kim, it's important

         24  to understand that the last four years, you guys

         25  have done enough to make it difficult to do business
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          2  on the street.  Taxes and regulations are too high.

          3  So we are in solidarity with Mr. Kim, with the rest

          4  of the trade organizations, the Bodego Association,

          5  and the National Supermarket Association in

          6  opposition to 731 and 699.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Mr.

          8  Lipsky.  I want to thank the leaders of the small

          9  businesses and the store owners for continuing to

         10  advocate for your concerns, and I want to reiterate,

         11  as I have for the past many months, that our concern

         12  is with the Department of Transportation and their

         13  failure to uphold their obligations, even under

         14  current law, which we spell out more clearly under

         15  699.  731 is a measure that we introduced in order

         16  to allay some of your concerns.  In fact, the

         17  language with regard to the cure period is something

         18  that you, yourself had suggested, Mr. Kim.  So we

         19  put that in the bill.

         20                 Again we don't want to see

         21  overzealous enforcement against the store owners.

         22  It is not about inspecting the stores, it is about

         23  the DOT upholding their obligations to examine the

         24  sidewalks.

         25                 I do have one very quick question for
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          2  you, Mr. Kim. And we are very much running of time.

          3  The question for you is, Do you think that -- we

          4  will readily stand with you in saying that this is

          5  not a problem that's all throughout the City.  But

          6  do you think that there are certain locations in the

          7  City where these stands do pose a problem for

          8  pedestrians?  It's a very simple yes or no.

          9                 MR. KIM: Pose what?  I'm sorry.

         10                 CHAIRMAN LIU: Well okay.  Does the

         11  problem exist anywhere in the City?

         12                 MR. KIM: We should find out through a

         13  task force or whatever. --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't -- on record

         15  from last week.

         16                 MR. KIM: No, I have one experience

         17  almost as 15 years ago, there was the one store in

         18   --  I don't know.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Kim, -- well

         20  that's -- I'll state for the record that you are on

         21  record last week stating something completely

         22  opposite to that.

         23                 I want to thank you very much for

         24  your testimony. And at this point, we are going to,

         25  unless there are questions from Council Members,
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          2  we're going to call for a vote.

          3                 ?  Although I did not write my name

          4  when I came in, you were already in session, but

          5  would it be possible for me -- I will take one and a

          6  half minutes to make some comments.  We represent

          7  the National Supermarket Association.  And also --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Take one minute,

          9  please,  Because we have lots of people waiting to

         10  testify.

         11                 ? Basically, everyone has stated the

         12  real facts of this issue with 699 and 731.  But one

         13  of the things that I fail to understand as I listen

         14  to your own comment in which you seem to have a

         15  gripe with the Department of Transportation, is that

         16  if one is licensed by Consumers Affairs, -- and he

         17  is not listening to my comments -- if one is

         18  licensed by Consumer Affair, it is assumed and

         19  understood that that is within regulation.  So why

         20  do we want then, the Department of Transportation --

         21  if you want the Department of Transportation to cone

         22  in to then inform the Consumer Affair that you are

         23  doing okay, so then you can apply for a license, I

         24  do not understand that.  When a Consumer Affair

         25  inspector comes to my store, he brings a tape
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          2  measures, he measures everything, and if everything

          3  is right, then we are not fined.  So while we have

          4  to assume that then it is not necessary for the

          5  Department of Transportation to come to preinspect

          6  before we can go to Consumer Affair to get our

          7  license.  We are overwhelmed with regulations, and

          8  this is creating more unnecessary regulations and

          9  more task faults that are not going to help neither

         10  the City nor the business community.

         11                 And the last thing is that I happen

         12  to -- you mention --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sir.  Thank you very

         14  much.  I appreciate your testimony.  I'll give you a

         15  copy of the current law as compared to the new law.

         16  It is very simple to understand.  All of it is

         17  encompassed in one page.  And the reason why we need

         18  the DOT to do their job is that this is not an issue

         19  about store owners.  This is an issue about the lack

         20  of space on City sidewalks for people to walk on.

         21  That it's simple as that.  You can have this copy.

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 I want to call the roll on Intro. No.

         24  731- A.  I recommend a yes vote on this.  Will the

         25  Clerk please call the roll.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sanders.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Permission to

         11  explain my vote.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you Mr.

         14  Chair.  I just want to make it very clear that this

         15  is a vote on 731.  There is actually distinction

         16  between 699- A and 731, and I seem to hear more

         17  opposition on 699- A, and no opposition on 731.  And

         18  with the good spirit that DOT had expressed, they're

         19  willing to look at and do agree that there should be

         20  analysis as to the stoop line safety pedestrian

         21  traffic, in conjunction with safety pedestrian

         22  traffic, I am in full support of the legislation

         23  731.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just to

          4  explain my vote, it's no disrespect to the Chairman,

          5  but I think, as I said in my statement, we're

          6  putting the cart before the horse here.  We should,

          7  if the Chairman would agree to withdraw 699, I might

          8  go along with 731.  The Chairman has not, therefore,

          9  with respect, I vote no.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Permission

         12  to explain my vote, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I also want

         15  to just, for the record, make it clear that this

         16  hearing and what we're voting on is 731- A, not 699-

         17  A.  And as the Chair explained earlier, there are

         18  clear differences between 731 and 699.  The

         19  distinction that we can pick up from 731- A is the

         20  fact that it calls for the evolvement of small

         21  business owners to be part of a task force.  That's

         22  what we're voting on here today, the creation of a

         23  task force that will be able to sit down and bring

         24  advice and opinion to Administration and to the City

         25  Council on the issue of how do we better improve the

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  access to sidewalks to pedestrians throughout the

          3  City of New York.  And as a member of the City

          4  Council that represents a community that has a high

          5  traffic in terms of commercial areas, and a big

          6  issue in my district I think that 731- A goes along

          7  way in bringing in a real dialogue in terms of how

          8  do we make our sidewalk more accessible, especially

          9  to our seniors again.  And pedestrian throughout the

         10  City of New York.  So on 731- A, Mr. Chair, I want

         11  to vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         15  explain my vote.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chairman,

         18  with all due respect to my colleagues, I have great

         19  respect for all of you, I vote no, because I do

         20  believe that this can be resolved internally within

         21  the agency, and I think they have not used the

         22  resources available from the City Council to do

         23  that.  I vote no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: With a vote of eight

          4  in the affirmative, two in the negative, and no

          5  abstentions the item is adopted.  Council Members

          6  please sign the Committee report.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          8    I want to thank all of my colleagues for their

          9  patience this morning, and thank the general public

         10  for all of their patience.  And I want to thank

         11  those who have testified so far for their important

         12  input into this process.

         13                 We are now going to go into the

         14  substance of today's hearing, which is the

         15  regulation by private entities of City traffic and

         16  parking regulations.  I want to invite

         17  representatives of the Administration, Sam Miller,

         18  from the Department of Finance, and Michael

         19  Primeggia, from the Department of Transportation to

         20  join us at the witness table.

         21                 This has been a long hearing thus

         22  far, and we have been joined since the beginning of

         23  this hearing by the Honorable Steven Sanders,

         24  Assembly Member, member of the State Assembly, who

         25  will -- go ahead -- who will testify next, after the
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          2  representatives of the Administration.

          3                 Mr. Miller, Mr. Primeggia, please

          4  proceed in which ever order you'd like.

          5                 I'm sorry.  Before you do, let me

          6  turn the floor over to my extremely patient and

          7  understanding colleague, Council Member Eva

          8  Moskowitz, who brought this issue to the attention

          9  of the Council and this Committee.  Council Member

         10  Moskowitz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         12  very much, Mr. Chair, for your willingness to

         13  conduct oversight over this very important issue.

         14  It happens that an area that I represent has had

         15  particular difficulties with this issue.  But I

         16  think there are some very far- reaching implications

         17  of what happens here.

         18                 And in summary, there were a number

         19  of things that happened.  First, there was almost in

         20  the middle of the night, a change in who had

         21  jurisdiction over issuing parking violations. There

         22  was a change in who put the signs up.  As I

         23  understand it, DOT has a sign shop, and how private

         24  entities can purchase those signs, and put them up.

         25  There are also the change in parking regulations had
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          2  very significant and I would argue, a very negative

          3  implication for the handicapped inside Peter Cooper.

          4

          5                 And finally, there is an issue of

          6  selective enforcement that, as the Council Member

          7  representing this area, I am deeply concerned with.

          8  So I am looking forward to hearing the Department of

          9  Transportation and Finance as to the authority for

         10  making this change, and the procedures that were or

         11  were not followed.  I'm also looking forward, of

         12  course, to hearing from my colleague, Steve Sanders,

         13  who has been deeply involved in this issue.

         14                 I'm also looking forward to hearing

         15  from MetLife and the traffic consultant that they

         16  hired.  They claim that educational notices were

         17  posted.  Neither I nor my other elected colleagues

         18  in government received any notification.  I have not

         19  been able to find Sty- town or Peter Cooper

         20  residents who believe they were properly noticed by

         21  them.  I am delighted that we will finally hear, not

         22  only from the President of the Sty- Town Peter

         23  Cooper Tenants' Association, but residents

         24  themselves, who are affected on a daily basis by

         25  these new regulations.  So I look forward to the
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          2  testimonies.  Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          4  Council Member Moskowitz.  Please proceed.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Thank

          6  you Chairman. Good afternoon Chairman Liu and

          7  members of the Transportation Committee.  My name is

          8  Michael Primeggia, and I am the Deputy Commissioner

          9  for Traffic Operations at the New York City

         10  Department of Transportation.  With me here today is

         11  Sam Miller, Assistant Commissioner of Communications

         12  and Customer Service at the Department of Finance.

         13  Thank you for inviting us here today to this

         14  oversight hearing on the private enforcement of DOT

         15  rules and regulations.

         16                 As you know, DOT is the City agency

         17  tasked with enhancing mobility, reducing congestion,

         18  and promoting traffic safety.  DOT's authority to

         19  effectively undertake its mission can be found in

         20  various provisions of the New York State Vehicle and

         21  Traffic Law, the VTL, and the New York City Charter.

         22                 Pursuant to the authority given to

         23  DOT by the VTL Section 1642, DOT has adopted

         24  regulations restricting parking, standing, and

         25  stopping on the City's roadways and highways,
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          2  including private roads open to public motor vehicle

          3  traffic.  One of these regulations, Title 34 Rules

          4  of the City of New York, Section 408a 1, prohibits

          5  parking in violation of restrictions set forth on

          6  signs authorized by DOT.  In effect, DOT has the

          7  authority to authorize signs restricting parking on

          8  private roadways open to the public.  Accordingly, a

          9  motor vehicle parked in violation of such a sign can

         10  be cited for violating a DOT parking violation

         11  regulation by New York City police officers and

         12  other authorized agents.

         13                 With regard to enforcement, the New

         14  York City Administration Code Section 19- 201

         15  authorizes the Department of Finance to adjudicate

         16  violations of regulations restricting parking,

         17  stopping, or standing in the City.  In furtherance

         18  of this authority, the Finance Department has

         19  adopted regulations detailing who is authorized to

         20  issue Notices of Violation to be adjudicated at the

         21  Department.

         22                 The list of entities authorized to

         23  enforce and issue violations can be found in the

         24  Finance Department's rules, Title 19 of the Rules of

         25  the City of New York, Section 3901.  While the
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          2  Police Department is the largest enforcer, other

          3  entities are listed as well, including the Sheriff,

          4  the MTA police, the United States Park Police, and

          5  the Housing Authority Police among many others.

          6                 In addition to these entities,

          7  Finance's regulations also include a smaller list of

          8  special patrolmen appointed by the Police

          9  Commissioner who do special duty at various

         10  locations around the City.  These special patrolmen

         11  are also authorized to issue Notices of Violation to

         12  be adjudicated at the Finance Department. This list

         13  includes special patrolmen of the Parkchester South

         14  Condominium, the New York City Hunts Point Terminal

         15  Market in the Bronx, and Stuyvesant Town in

         16  Manhattan.  Therefore, in these areas, violations of

         17  DOT authorized signs that regulate parking on

         18  private streets open to public motor vehicle traffic

         19  and placed there by the owners of these particular

         20  properties may be enforced by the special patrolmen

         21  through the issuance of Notices of Violation

         22  returnable to the Finance Department.

         23                 I would also like to point out that

         24  there are other privately- owned roads located

         25  throughout the City whereby the owners have not
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          2  requested authorization to issue Finance Department

          3  summonses, but instead, use other methods of

          4  enforcement such as contracting with independent

          5  firms for towing or booting.

          6                 Thank you again for inviting us

          7  today.  Assistant Commissioner Miller and I will be

          8  happy to answer any questions you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         10    I have some questions, but I'm going to first

         11  defer to Council Member Moskowitz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: When Rose

         13  Associates came to you to get this authority that

         14  you say exists in various Administrative codes, and

         15  so forth, what was their primary reason for

         16  requesting this right by their language and I

         17  assume, your agreement?  What was the rationale?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I'll

         19  answer that. The Department of Finance is the one

         20  that grants issuance authority.  So in late 2000,

         21  they came to us and told us that basically there

         22  were unenforced traffic violations going on.  It

         23  wasn't being enforced.  And the other thing was that

         24  the Fire Department had also contacted us, to say

         25  that they were concerned about access for their
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          2  vehicles.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So in

          4  short, they were saying that government was doing a

          5  lousy job.  Would that be fair?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I

          7  wouldn't say government was doing a lousy job, I

          8  would say government had other priorities.  So they

          9  asked us to have issuance authority.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Because

         11  here it says, According to Rose Associates,

         12   "enforcement was sporadic, and ineffective at

         13  alleviating this condition"  -- by which they mean

         14  congestion.  Lousy job, right?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Those

         16  are your words, sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Well, I'm

         18  asking you their words.  Enforcement was sporadic.

         19  When kids perform sporadically, they're not

         20  learning.  Right?  This is a lousy job.  So

         21  government's doing a lousy job.  Do you know what

         22  the source of the lousy job was?  In other words, in

         23  what sense was it a lousy job? And does anyone know,

         24  from DOT, the cause of the lousy job?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: DOT
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          2  has very limited enforcement authority when it comes

          3  to parking violations.  The officers that we have

          4  are very small in number, less than 100, and we

          5  concentrate on areas where there are parking meters,

          6  for parking meter violations.  So I do not know that

          7  enforcement was either sporadic or as, in your

          8  phrase, lousy.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: It's not my

         10  phrase, let's be clear.  This is Rose Associates who

         11  are saying this. They're saying the enforcement

         12   "enforcement was sporadic, and ineffective." To me,

         13  that means lousy.  I think most people knowledgeable

         14  about the English language would have to agree.

         15  That's their accusation. Now you may not agree with

         16  that --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         18  Council Member, I do not have any affirmative

         19  knowledge that enforcement was sporadic and

         20  ineffective.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So Rose

         22  Associates didn't communicate that to you.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Not to

         24  the Department of Transportation.  But I would take

         25  issue that sporadic does not necessarily translate
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          2  to "lousy".

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Sporadic

          4  and ineffective. Okay, let's not dispute that, it

          5  just seems a little silly, but sporadic --

          6  ineffective generally means lousy.  Not good at.

          7  Not consistent.  Not high performing.  Lousy.

          8                 But anyway, according to them,

          9  they're asking for this right or privilege because

         10  government is not getting the job done.  And what

         11  I'd like to understand, is, did anyone at DOT or

         12  Finance ever consult the residents of Sty- town to

         13  figure out what was causing the ineffective efforts.

         14    It could be, of course, a lack of resources on

         15  DOT's part.  It could be parking patterns that are

         16  specific to Sty- town.  And I'm wondering if you

         17  ever had that conversation with residents.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I

         19  don't know that there was a specific conversation

         20  about what the reason was behind a sporadic

         21  enforcement, but I can tell you, we at Finance

         22  observed that there wasn't consistent, or there was

         23  sporadic enforcement. We took that into

         24  consideration in reviewing their application. And

         25  then, once we proposed that they should have
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          2  issuance authority, there was a 30- day comment

          3  period.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: All right,

          5  we'll get to that in a second.  Let me just go back

          6  to this issue of traffic congestion.  Because there

          7  are some very specific problems at Sty town.  In

          8  fact, there was a New York Times story on the

          9  problems specific to Sty- town and Peter Cooper.

         10  Are you aware of what those problems were?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: In

         12  2000?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Well, there

         14  have been consistent stories about it, but there was

         15  a front- page story about this not too long ago.

         16  Let me tell you, I don't want you to play the

         17  guessing game.  It has to do with permits, placards

         18  on the dashboard that most residents of Sty- town

         19  believe are being illegally used.  In other words,

         20  they're Police Department, Fire Department, lots of

         21  sewer, I mean, all sorts of City- related functions

         22  that seems very odd that you would park in Sty- town

         23  and really be on official business.  And there was

         24  an expose of this. And thanks to the town and

         25  village, the local paper, and thanks to the work of
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          2  constituents, photographs are regularly taken of an

          3  entire line of these cars with these placards.

          4  Whether the placards are legal or not, or whether

          5  the use is illegal or not, or sometimes, perhaps

          6  legal.  But it seems a little far- fetched.

          7                 Were you aware that that was a

          8  primary cause of the congestion?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No.

         10  I'm not aware of, nor was the Department aware of

         11  congestion on the private streets in Stuyvesant

         12  Town.  The regulations which exist, which existed

         13  prior to the changes that were made by the property

         14  owner, did not regulate the roadways to maximize

         15  traffic flow and minimize congestion.  They were

         16  regulated for other purposes.  Like many residential

         17  neighborhoods in the City of New York, the local

         18  streets are regulated not for traffic flow purposes,

         19  but are regulated for other purposes.  They could be

         20  to ensure street cleaning; they could be to ensure

         21  access to the curb; for adjacent land uses.  But

         22  most of the streets of New York, in most

         23  neighborhoods in the City, are not regulated for

         24  traffic flow or to eliminate congestion.  They are

         25  regulated for these other purposes that I mentioned.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: The reason

          3  this is important, is because obviously, the

          4  solution should match the problem.  And here, the

          5  problem, according to Rose Associates themselves,

          6  the problem is lousy enforcement.  And the question

          7  is, is it that DOT was doing a lousy job, perhaps.

          8  Or perhaps is it the use of these illegal permits?

          9  And it doesn't seem that DOT did any kind of

         10  questioning about the use of these illegal permits,

         11  even though it was a front- page story.

         12                 Let me move on to one other point --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Let me

         14  again be clear.  DOT's role in the enforcement of

         15  parking violations is limited.  We regulate the

         16  curbs on all public streets.  And on private

         17  streets, we have the ability to also authorize the

         18  types of regulations that existing.  But DOT itself,

         19  does not have a large, in fact, I would call it a

         20  handful of enforcement agents that write summonses

         21  for parking violations.   And so --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I

         23  understand that you are not the Parking Violations

         24  Bureau.  I understand that you're not NYPD.  I

         25  understand that too.  Let me ask you this: Does DOT
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          2  believe that when it transfers this kind of

          3  authority, that it has an obligation to adequately

          4  notify the public?  And does it include elected

          5  officials in that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

          7  notice to the public about changes in traffic

          8  regulations on public streets and on private

          9  streets, is the erection of signs.  There --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Is the

         11  what?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Is the

         13  erection of signs.  And so let's take the example,

         14  on a public roadway, a street that's not privately

         15  owned, that is owned by the public, and there's a

         16  need to change the regulation from existing

         17  regulation which might regulate it for street

         18  cleaning, and now regulate that same set of part of

         19  the curb --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So as soon

         21  as you put up the sign, you've done your duty.  Is

         22  that what you're saying? Could you get a short

         23  answer?  Because we have a lot of topics to cover.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

         25  notice to the public is the erection of the sign.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So, just

          3  simple.  Keep it simple.  The sign, in your view, is

          4  adequate notification.  So you did your duty,

          5  because you put up a sign.  That's your perspective.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          9  Let's try in keep it brief, otherwise we're going to

         10  end up with a stoop line situation, and  we'll never

         11  get out of here.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I

         13  found that very illuminating.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I'm glad

         15  you did.

         16                 Handicapped access.  What did the

         17  Department do, if anything, to consider the impact

         18  of the changes in the signage in terms of the

         19  effects on the handicapped?  And again, if I can

         20  remind you, brief short answers.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Some

         22  of the answers require a little bit more

         23  explanation.  But again, the parking by people with

         24  disabilities is afforded on public streets of New

         25  York by the special parking permit.  A special
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          2  parking identification permit.  There are no on-

          3  street parking spaces that are designated for on-

          4  street parking for people with disabilities.  What

          5  the City uses instead is a permit which gives broad

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I

          8  understand that.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: It

         10  gives a lot of places, allows a lot of places for

         11  these people with these permits to park.  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Could we

         13  just get to the- If you're disputing that the change

         14  in signage -- you're saying the change in signage

         15  had no impact on the handicapped.  Could you state

         16  that?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No.

         18  What I'm saying is that the parking for people with

         19  disabilities on street is afforded by permit, by the

         20  special parking --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But that

         22  was not my question.  My question was, when you gave

         23  MetLife, Rose Associates, whatever, the authority to

         24  buy their signs and erect these new signs, did you

         25  consider -- this is a yes or no question -- did you
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          2  consider it's impact on the handicapped in Sty- town

          3  Peter Cooper?            DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  PRIMEGGIA: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: No.  So

          6  that was not even -- you -- that was not even a

          7  factor in your consideration.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: As it

          9  is not a factor any time we regulate the curbs in

         10  New York City.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So you

         12  never consider -- that's quite an admonition -- you

         13  never consider the plight of the handicapped when

         14  you do signage.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: What

         16  we do, is we allow the people with disabilities to

         17  park  with their permit, with the correct permit, at

         18  dozens of locations regulated by -- they can park in

         19  any location except those where all standing and

         20  stopping is prohibited.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But

         22  presumably, as a policy matter, when the DOT goes

         23  around figuring out how many signs, what kind of

         24  signs, somewhere in the corner of that large office

         25  of bureaucrats, someone says, this is going to
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          2  affect the handicapped in the following way.  That

          3  discussion is never on the lips of anyone at DOT?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: When a

          5  permit holder with a special permit identification

          6  tells us about a particular problem at the location

          7  where they park, --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But you

          9  never proactively --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         11  Councilwoman, may I finish?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: If you

         13  could be succinct, then yes.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Then

         15  the answer is, when we are notified of a particular

         16  concern by a member -- a permit holder, a valid

         17  permit holder, we will at the location that they

         18  need it, take proactive steps to change the

         19  regulation to one where a permit holder is

         20  authorized to park.  And so it may make some on-

         21  street space available for the legitimate permit

         22  holder, that is not available to members of the

         23  general public.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So you only

         25  consider the concerns of the handicapped if -- in a
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          2  reactive way.  If they happen to complain about an

          3  issue.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

          5  consider the --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Is that

          7  correct?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

          9  believe that the special permit identification,

         10  which gives very broad ability for people with

         11  disabilities to park on the City streets, adequately

         12  serves that need.  When we are advised that there

         13  are some other needs from our valid permit holders

         14  that the regulations near where they need to conduct

         15  business, or where they need to find parking are not

         16   -- they're not successful in finding it because the

         17  overly restrictive regulations, we have reviewed

         18  those regulations, and often, changed them to allow

         19   --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So you're

         21  reactive.  When people complain about a particular

         22  issue.  But you don't do any broad policy thinking

         23  about the needs of the handicapped in New York City.

         24

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Broad
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          2  policy thinking is done by the issuance of the

          3  permit.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.  Are

          5  you in receipt of any studies by the consultants

          6  that MetLife hired, I think it was VMI, if I

          7  remember correctly, that discussed the impact on the

          8  handicapped of this change in regulation?  And

          9  that's my final question, now, Mr. Chair.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I am

         11  not in receipt of any such thing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         13  Because they said they submitted it to you. But you

         14  are not aware.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: They

         16  said they submitted it to Michael Primeggia?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: No.  They

         18  said DOT.  I believe DOT and --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I did

         20  not see such a study.  If it is in DOT, I will look

         21  to see if the study came to DOT, but I am not

         22  familiar with it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: And Mr.

         24  Miller, did you receive any study from their traffic

         25  consultant on the affects of this change in
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          2  regulations and how it would affect the handicapped?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          7  Council Member Moskowitz.  Just a few questions on

          8  my end.

          9                 I think the questions as they pertain

         10  to Stuyvesant Town, are very pertinent, not only to

         11  Stuyvesant Town, but to other areas of the City,

         12  where there apparently private enforcement of City

         13  regulations.  My understanding is that this is

         14  privately- owned property, these streets are

         15  privately owned.  Is that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: That's

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are they purely

         19  private owned, so that the owner can do whatever

         20  they want with these streets?  Or are there certain

         21  restrictions that even though these streets are

         22  privately owned, there are still restrictions that

         23  they have to comply with?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: In

         25  terms of traffic tickets, once they have the issuing
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          2  authority, they are able to issue the same traffic

          3   --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm not even asking

          5  about traffic tickets.  I'm simply saying, are these

          6  privately- owned streets purely private property?

          7  Or are there certain kinds of restrictions, either

          8  placed on deeds, or otherwise in agreements with the

          9  private owner that they have to comply with?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: There

         11  may be other -- in order for them to assert their

         12  rights, there are certain responsibilities by the

         13  private owner, particularly streets that are open

         14  for public use.  I do not know --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are they required to

         16  open them for public use?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         18  Private streets which are open for public use is

         19  what we are talking about.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know.  But are

         21  they required to be open for public use?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No.

         23  There are some private streets in the City of New

         24  York that are not required to be open.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In the case that we
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          2  are talking about, at Stuyvesant Town.  Sometimes,

          3  when a developer is allowed to build whatever

          4  they're building, or to conduct whatever operations

          5  they conduct at a particular location, even though

          6  it's privately owned, there are some restrictions.

          7  So are these streets required to be open to the

          8  public?  Or can the owner of these properties, these

          9  streets, close them off to the general public?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: In the

         11  specific case of Stuyvesant Town, I am not sure of

         12  that answer, but we can certainly get it for you.  I

         13  know there are public streets that are completely

         14  closed -- there are private streets that are

         15  completely closed to the public and --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In cases where

         17  streets are completely closed to the public, and are

         18  only accessible to people who have a reason to be

         19  there, or permission to be there, such as they own a

         20  home in that area, does the DOT have any

         21  jurisdiction on those purely private streets that

         22  are closed off to the public?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In this case, does

         25  the DOT have any jurisdiction over Stuyvesant Town
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          2  streets?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

          4  have the authority to authorize signs because they

          5  are open to the public use.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: When they make a

          7  change in the parking designations, does the owner

          8  of Stuyvesant Town actually have to get permission

          9  from the DOT?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: They

         11  do not require permission, although we did, in this

         12  case, when they presented us with the plan for the

         13  signage that they were looking to install, we did

         14  review that to ensure that it was not anything

         15  unusual being done.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If you're not

         17  required to weigh in on what's happening on those

         18  Stuyvesant Town streets, why would you even print

         19  signs?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIU: Because we

         21  authorize -- we --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But you have no

         23  jurisdiction.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         25  Chairman, Mr. Chairman.  We are authorized, we have
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          2  the authority to authorize the signs, whether we

          3  choose to make them and install them, or make them,

          4  or be paid to make them for their installation,

          5  signs need to be authorized by the Department.  In

          6  this case, the signs were authorized by the

          7  Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it's not simply

          9  using -- look, we always want to use our City

         10  resources as efficiently as possible.  If it means

         11  that the City makes money  off of making these

         12  signs, I don't think anybody has a problem with

         13  that.  But you're saying that the DOT went far

         14  beyond just simply printing up the sign.  You

         15  actually authorized the change in the parking

         16  designations.  Therefore, some kind of process had

         17  to lead up to that change.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

         19  reviewed the plan that they submitted, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that plan was

         21  submitted by --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: By the

         23  owners of the private streets.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And do you have --

         25  would a copy of that plan be made available to this
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          2  Committee?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Sure,

          4  it could be.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  When the DOT

          6  changes street designations from No Parking to No

          7  Standing, what kinds of standards, -- just generally

          8  speaking -- what kind of standards do you look at

          9  before you change from No Parking to No Standing?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: It

         11  depends on what the No Standing is for.  If it was

         12  for a typical change, would be to put in a rush-

         13  hour or a peak period regulation, so a regulation

         14  would be changed that might allow metered parking to

         15  go on at particular time, and for a portion of that

         16  period, it's changed to a rush- hour regulation.

         17  Similarly, when we change from a rush- hour

         18  regulation to some lesser regulation, we look at the

         19  same type of issue.  It depends on what that No

         20  Standing is for.

         21                 A good example:  On Park Avenue

         22  between 3rd and 54th Street, we used to allow truck

         23  loading during the bulk of the day, from 10 a.m. to

         24  4 p.m.  The Police Department came to us and said

         25  there was a security issue at that location, asked
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          2  us to change the regulations to a No Standing, a 24-

          3  hour No Standing regulation.  We accommodated that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: For example, in

          5  Stuyvesant Town, what was the reason for the change

          6  from No Parking to No Standing?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I'm

          8  not sure that the area that they wanted to change

          9  from the No Parking Anytime to the "no standing" was

         10  near the entrances to some of the buildings, and

         11  they wanted to reserve that space for vehicles to

         12  pull up, drop off, and pick up, and move forward.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It just doesn't seem

         14  like the DOT is actually paying that much attention.

         15    I know you Michael.  And you're on top of like --

         16  I think I could mention any specific block in New

         17  York City, and you would know exactly what the

         18  regulations are.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Many

         20  of them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I am a bit surprised

         22  that you would not know -- there are 40 thousand

         23  people in Stuyvesant Town.  It's a big, big area.

         24  So these parking regulations and changes in these

         25  designations affect a lot of people.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: But

          3  again, the streets in Stuyvesant Town are regulated

          4  previously to this change, and currently, are

          5  regulated not for traffic flow or traffic congestion

          6  mitigation purposes, but for other purposes.  Those

          7  other purposes are predominantly to ensure the

          8  streets are swept, to provide some warehousing of

          9  vehicles on the street, and in the case of the "no

         10  standing" regulations, to provide access to the

         11  building for pick up and drop off.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just a few more

         13  questions.  And maybe Mr. Miller can answer some of

         14  these also.  Obviously, a lot of the complaints are

         15  coming up because there are people who are getting

         16  issued parking tickets left and right.  The people

         17  who issue these parking tickets at Stuyvesant Town

         18  and at other privately- owned areas in the City that

         19  have privately- owned streets, but those streets are

         20  accessible to the public, who empowers these

         21  individuals to issue these tickets?  I think you

         22  testified that the Police Commissioner?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: The

         24  Department of Finance grants an entity such as

         25  Stuyvesant Town the ability to issue parking
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          2  tickets.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So I'm a

          4  little confused here.  Because in the testimony, I

          5  think it said the Commissioner. The Police

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: The

          8  patrolmen are appointed by the Police Commissioner,

          9  but as an entity, the agency is given issuance

         10  authority by the Department of Finance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And who employs

         12  those special patrolmen?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         14  They're employed by the agency. By the private

         15  entity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So the

         17  private entity actually is permitted by Finance to

         18  set the regulations.  And the enforcement.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Well,

         20  the parking regulations are set by the Department of

         21  Transportation, and --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The Department of

         23  Transportation has no jurisdiction.  Right?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The Department of
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          2  Transportation has no jurisdiction over Stuyvesant

          3  Town streets.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Mr.

          5  Chairman, again, let's be clear.  The signs need to

          6  be authorized by the Department of Transportation,

          7  because the streets are open to the public.  And so,

          8  yes, to the extent that -- our jurisdiction is that

          9  we must authorize the signs on streets that are open

         10  to the -- private streets that are open to the

         11  public purposes.  And so, signs are authorized.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Before I thought you

         13  testified that they didn't have to.  The owners of

         14  Stuyvesant Town didn't have to come to the DOT, but

         15  in this case they came to the DOT and consulted with

         16  you.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         18  Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Did they have to do

         20  that?  Or did they not have to do that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: If the

         22  purpose of the signs was to issue summonses,

         23  returnable to the Parking Violations Bureau, then

         24  the Department of Transportation must authorize the

         25  signs.  Private --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Meaning authorize

          3  the change in designation.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

          5  Authorize the signs.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What's the

          7  difference between authorizing the signs and

          8  authorizing the change in designation? Is there any

          9  difference?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I

         11  guess I'm not sure what you're trying to get to when

         12  you say "change the designation". The changes to the

         13  regulation were -- that existed prior to 2004. What

         14  happened now were we believed were well within the

         15  rights for the private entity and were a typical

         16  regulation that would be used for that typical

         17  purpose anywhere in the City.  And so we did not

         18  find any problem with -- if the change was from "no

         19  parking anytime" to "no standing anytime" for that

         20  specific location, we didn't find any problem with

         21  that.

         22                 Similarly, the City of New York does

         23  not authorize by sign, on- street parking spaces for

         24  parking for people with disabilities.  My

         25  understanding is that in Stuyvesant Town, there have
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          2  been those types of spaces designated specifically

          3   -- on street spaces -- specifically for that

          4  purpose.  Again, the Department does not normally do

          5  that on its own City streets, but we had no problem

          6  with the private entity regulating the streets in

          7  that fashion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Based on your

          9  testimony, we have to conclude in this Committee the

         10  DOT does have to weigh in on the changes in these

         11  parking designations.  Or changes in the parking

         12  signs.  Whatever it is.  I don't think there's any

         13  difference to the general public.  Someone who is

         14  driving their car and looking for a space to park,

         15  whether you call it a parking designation, or the

         16  parking sign itself, it makes no difference to that

         17  driver.

         18                 So, come on, let's be clearer.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Why I

         20  make that determination is because there are some

         21  private streets where they have not come to the

         22  Department requesting the ability to issue

         23  summonses.  And so as a result, they don't put up

         24  signs that we authorize.  And so those signs cannot

         25  be enforced in the same fashion as --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure. So my question

          3  to you was, at Stuyvesant Town, did they have to

          4  come to the Department of Transportation for those

          5  changes or not?  And you --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: To

          7  authorize the signs, yes.  They had to come to us

          8  for that purpose.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And for this

         10  Committee, there is absolutely no difference between

         11  the signs and the parking designations.  We're not

         12  looking at it from the bureaucratic point of view,

         13  or rule- making point of view.  We're simply looking

         14  at it -- like of I drove through Stuyvesant Town,

         15  and I see a sign, that is it.  Whether it be the

         16  sign or the designation.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         18  Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All of that leads us

         20  to conclude one simple sentence: That the owners of

         21  Stuyvesant Town were obligated to consult with DOT,

         22  and the DOT actually had to make a decision whether

         23  to authorize it or not.

         24                 As far as the enforcement of these

         25  parking designations.  The owner in this case, the
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          2  owner of Stuyvesant Town, is required to be

          3  permitted by the Department of Finance, to enforce

          4  these regulations.  And the way the owner enforces

          5  these regulations is by going out and hiring these

          6  special patrolmen.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

          8  Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  That's

         10  different from the way other parking regulations are

         11  enforced and other parking tickets are issued in

         12  this City.  For the most part, they're issued by

         13  agents of the NYPD.  And some other agencies, you

         14  mentioned that MTA, the Park Police, the Housing

         15  Authority Police.  If someone has an issue with one

         16  of these parking tickets, where do they go?  Do they

         17  go to the Department of Finance?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In that way, it's

         21  the same thing as any other --

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: The

         23  same rights that anybody else has when they receive

         24  a ticket.  They can contest a ticket; they can

         25  appeal.  The same process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And are they the

          3  same kinds of tickets that are issued on City

          4  streets?  No parking, No standing, I don't know if

          5  there's any No stopping in this case.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: And let's

          9  say these special patrolmen, is that what they're

         10  called?  The people who can issue tickets.  Let's

         11  say they do a really lousy job.  They don't report

         12  to you.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Yes.

         14  We look at -- first of all, we train them when they

         15  get --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Who fires

         17  them?  Who can fire them?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We can

         19  fire them.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: You can

         21  fire them.  You can go to MetLife and say, Joe Schmo

         22  can no longer be a patrolman, because he --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I'm

         24  actually saying that we can remove the issuance

         25  authority if we believe that the issuance is not
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          2  being done correctly.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So you can

          4  say to MetLife that you no longer have this special

          5  privilege, but you can't fire the particular person

          6  who may be doing a lousy job?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

          8  conduct training, we review the issuance from every

          9  agency, and we look to see that issuance is being

         10  done properly.  And we can go back and help with

         11  training of particular individuals --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: How do they

         13  compare to your in- house people?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: They

         15  compare -- it's about the same.  We haven't seen

         16  anything to suggest --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: The amount

         18  of excellence and the amount of lousiness is the

         19  same.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We're

         21  seeing the same, roughly the same percentage of

         22  tickets --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But that

         24  doesn't tell you anything about quality.  Does it?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Well,
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          2  we're looking to see, as we would for the NYPD, and

          3  DOT, and Sanitation, and the other agencies, we're

          4  looking to see -- if we see that a high percentage

          5  of tickets are being dismissed because they're being

          6  written incorrectly, or the judge is saying, "That's

          7  not a violation", then we would say to the agency,

          8   "You need to be retrained, because you're clearly

          9  issuing a lot of tickets that are ultimately not

         10  being --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So it's

         12  your position that the quality is exactly the same.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I

         14  would say its -- I don't have the exact numbers in

         15  front of me, but when I took a look at this, yes. It

         16  looks like the issuance is about the same in terms

         17  of the quality of the ticket.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Mr. Chair,

         19  may I have the liberty of asking one more question?

         20                 In your view, and I guess I'm

         21  directing this towards DOT, that there was a net

         22  loss in availability of parking for the handicapped.

         23    Given that, I understand, for the most part,

         24  handicapped parking is not a specific designation,

         25  but it is a permit that allows you -- given this new
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          2  configuration --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: My

          4  understanding is that there is more designated on-

          5  street parking spaces for people with disabilities

          6  now than there was before.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: When you

          8  say, it's your understanding -- I'm obviously a

          9  little nervous -- has anyone at DOT, has that been

         10  confirmed?  Are you willing to sort of take an oath

         11  and say "Yes, there is no net loss, or in fact,

         12  there's a gain of parking available for the

         13  handicapped"?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

         15  Manhattan Borough Commissioner reminds me there are

         16  now 40 spaces designated on streets for people with

         17  disabilities.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But if

         19  handicapped permits were allowed to park in

         20  generally designated, I guess I get confused with No

         21  Parking and No Standing.  It's No Standing.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No.

         23  It's No Parking.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: It's No

         25  Parking.  Then that could outweigh any additional
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          2  specifically designated spaces, could it not?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: It

          4  could.  I do not have the exact footage of all of

          5  the No Parking that was replaced by No Standing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Let me ask

          7  you just one more question.  I know I keep promising

          8  the Chair that this is my last.  If DOT and DOF

          9  learned that MetLife's plan had reduced handicapped

         10  parking to zero -- hypothetical -- if it had learned

         11  this, would it have acted any differently?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Had we

         13  learned that, we would have raised that in

         14  discussing their plans.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So a

         16  reduction in parking to the handicapped is one of

         17  many concerns that you have.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: If it

         19  had been raised, as it's been raised in the past, as

         20  I mentioned, in response to the previous question,

         21  we do take proactive steps once we know that there's

         22  an issue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.  I

         24  have not literally counted up the number of spaces,

         25  but my constituents report to me, and a lot of them
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          2   -- you know when you have one person reporting it's

          3  different.  But when you have lots of people

          4  complaining about this, generally I find there's

          5  truth to the nature of the complaint.  And this is

          6  something that people have direct knowledge about,

          7  because I know, as an elected official where I'm

          8  allowed to park and where I'm not and so forth.  I

          9  would ask, Mr. Chair, if this is okay with you, that

         10  we ask DOT to formally go and count the before and

         11  after and give us a level of certainty and ask them

         12  to review that, in fact, handicapped parking has not

         13  been reduced by the changes in the signage.  Is that

         14  permissible, Mr. Chair?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We could certainly

         16  ask.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I can

         18  certainly look into it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         22  Member Moskowitz. As far as the, once again going

         23  back to the enforcement, generally speaking, it

         24  sounds like the enforcement powers are conferred on

         25  the private development by the Department of
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          2  Finance.  And so, you state that you give the

          3  training to the special patrolmen?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Yes.

          5  Yes we do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Does the Department

          7  of Finance train the Traffic Agents?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Yes.

          9  We also train NYPD and DOT as well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is it the same?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Same

         12  kind of training.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Do they go through

         14  the same classes?  Or are there separate classes and

         15  separate training sessions?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I'll

         17  have to double check.  I believe there was a

         18  separate class in February 2001, shortly after

         19  issuance authority was granted in January of 2001.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The summonses issued

         21  by these special patrolmen, the summonses are

         22  answered directly to the Department of Finance

         23  Parking Violations Bureau?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Does the private
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          2  owner get involved in any way with the adjudication

          3  of these?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the fines go

          6  straight to the Department of Finance.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: The

          8  hearings go to our judges, they're treated the same

          9  as all the others.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Thank you

         11  very much.  Thanks for waiting so long to testify,

         12  and we appreciate your comments today.

         13                 Now it's a privilege for us to have

         14  the Honorable Steven Sanders to be testifying before

         15  this Committee today.  I want to thank you for

         16  joining us for what has turned out to be a rather

         17  lengthy hearing.

         18                 Immediately after Assemblyman Sanders

         19  testifies, we will hear from Steve Stadmeyer, from

         20  Peter Cooper Village; Vincent Iavarone, from

         21  Stuyvesant Town; and Harry Giannoulis, representing

         22  MetLife.

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN SANDERS: Mr. Chairman, my

         24  good friend, Eva Moskowitz, I couldn't help

         25  appreciating during the questions, the
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          2  interrogatories that occurred a few moments ago, I

          3  couldn't help but appreciate your what seemed to be

          4  your frustration over not being able to quite sort

          5  out, or at least get answers that seem to be

          6  directly responses to your questions, and I know

          7  why. Because I've shared that frustration for many

          8  years.  Because this is a very complicated situation

          9  that doesn't lend itself towards easy answers.  And

         10  the people who are answering the questions are

         11  either not giving you straight answers or don't know

         12  the straight answers, then it leaves you feeling

         13  like you're in a quandary.

         14                 So let me do two things if I might,

         15  Mr. Chairman, and my good friend, Council Member

         16  Moskowitz.  Let me spend just a moment or two, a

         17  really brief moment or two reviewing the history of

         18  Stuyvesant Town. Because it is a special history and

         19  one has to understand how all this came about.  And

         20  then spend a few moments talking about my

         21  observations about the problems that have occurred

         22  over 28 years.  At least the 28 years that I've

         23  represented, had the honor to represent Stuyvesant

         24  Town and Peter Cooper Village.

         25                 And let me start off by saying to you
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          2  that I approach this issue, and I'm here today and

          3  so appreciative of Eva Moskowitz's asking you, Mr.

          4  Chairman, to hold these hearings, because I approach

          5  this as a lawmaker.  I'm not opposed to private

          6  property.  I think people who own property have a

          7  right to regulate that property as they see fit,

          8  that's their business.  And that's their right.  I'm

          9  not opposed to parking tickets.  From someone who

         10  has gotten a few of them in his day, right around

         11  the areas you're talking about, and I appreciate the

         12  fact that if you violate a parking, a New York City

         13  parking regulation, you do it at your own risk, and

         14  most of the time, you pay a fine, as I have done.

         15                 My concern here is that there is a

         16  melding of private interests and public policy that

         17  is totally unclear to the ordinary person, and even

         18  public officials as to where private property

         19  regulations and interests begin, and where does

         20  public policy begin and end?  And here, you're not

         21  getting a straight answer.

         22                 And it is not just about Stuyvesant

         23  Town, this problem that we're discussing today could

         24  occur almost anywhere in the City of New York, if

         25  we're not careful, very careful, to make sure that
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          2  we understand the difference between private

          3  property and private owners, and the public

          4  responsibility to regulate public streets.

          5                 So first, let me talk for just a few

          6  seconds about Stuyvesant Town.  Because its history

          7  is somewhat unique.  It was build about 55 years

          8  ago, in the late 1940s.  It was built primarily as

          9  both slum clearance and a place for returning World

         10  War II veterans to have a place to live.  It always

         11  had a unique relationship with the City of New York.

         12    Even from its inception. And that's important to

         13  understand.  When it was built, it was built with a

         14  25- year tax abatement.  Didn't pay any property

         15  taxes to the City of New York for 25 years.  And in

         16  exchange for that, the City of New York regulated

         17  the rents.  The rent increases.  The owner, MetLife,

         18  could not achieve a rent increase, which they wanted

         19  or needed unless they went to the City of New York,

         20  and said, "We need a rent increase".  And the City

         21  Council, or the Board of Estimates would vote on

         22  whether or not a rent increase was justified.  There

         23  was a unique relationship between Stuyvesant Town

         24  and MetLife and New York City from the very

         25  inception.
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          2                 Now, the subject in question are four

          3  interior roadways that run through Stuyvesant Town.

          4  Stuyvesant Town is private property.  These four

          5  loops are private property.  MetLife, by arrangement

          6  with the City of New York, going back probably

          7  before I was elected to the State Assembly,

          8  established a very unique relationship with the

          9  City.  It said, look, this is private property and

         10  in fact, to assert our private property rights,

         11  we're going to close each of those loops at least

         12  once a year.  And they close them once a year

         13  because that is what is required to assert our

         14  private property interests.  But, we want the City

         15  of New York to be involved in the enforcement of

         16  traffic regulations, parking regulations, and also

         17  security.

         18                 So they invited the City in to help

         19  regulate the parking and the security in Stuyvesant

         20  Town and on these loops. And as a result, over the

         21  years, up until last year, this was the arrangement.

         22    The City of New York was granted the right by

         23  MetLife, despite the fact that it was private

         24  property, to establish parking regulations in those

         25  loops.  Those loops, by the way probably comprise
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          2  nearly 350 legal parking spots.

          3                 The City of New York was asked by

          4  MetLife, and it was an arrangement entered into

          5  between the City and MetLife, that the City would

          6  establish parking regulations.  They would set up

          7  signs, they were DOT signs, and they would be

          8  enforced by both the City of New York, its parking

          9  enforcement agents, the NYPD at times, the 13th

         10  Precinct, or the officers that were employed by

         11  MetLife who had conferred upon them special

         12  patrolmen status.

         13                 And that's the way things existed up

         14  until last year.  What happened last year, why does

         15  it matter?  And some of the questions that both of

         16  you persons asked, let me try to address now.

         17                 The change that occurred last year

         18  matters, and it matters profoundly, because MetLife

         19  decided, which they had a right to do, they decided

         20  that they no longer wanted the City of New York to

         21  be in any way, shape, or form involved in the

         22  operation of these loops.  And a such, they removed

         23  unilaterally, they removed -- their employees, by

         24  the way, not DOT employees.  MetLife removed the New

         25  York City  DOT signs and erected other signs that
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          2  looked a lot like New York City signs, because

          3  they're manufactured by the City, but in fact, did

          4  not have the indicia on the bottom of the sign that

          5  said New York City Department of Transportation.

          6                 They basically said to the City, "We

          7  don't need your help, thank you.  These are private

          8  streets.  We want them to be strictly private

          9  streets.  But oh, by the way, we still want the

         10  ability to hand out tickets so we can regulate the

         11  parking.  When people violate the parking, we want

         12  to be able to regulate it in a meaningful way.  So

         13  by the way, though we don't want your regulations,

         14  and we want to set our own regulations"  -- and went

         15  about changing one in particular, in a very

         16  meaningful way, at the same time, they said,

         17   "However, we want the City to be in essence, the

         18  agent of enforcement.  Meaning, that we want to be

         19  able to give out New York City tickets on private

         20  property.  We want the City to enforce that, because

         21  if you violate the law, you'll get a ticket, and

         22  you'll have to pay the ticket to the City of New

         23  York".

         24                 So they want public enforcement on

         25  private streets, and they wanted the ability to
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          2  determine who would get a ticket, and under what

          3  circumstance.  I think that is very problematic. And

          4  I think it's a little dangerous.  It's a little

          5  scary.

          6                 I'll tell you my own involvement with

          7  this.  When all this was happening, I went to the

          8  City, and I said to the City, "I don't understand

          9  what's happening here".  The signs were changed

         10  overnight, there was no notice, by anyone, to any

         11  private citizen or public official.  As a matter of

         12  fact, if you weren't careful, you didn't even know

         13  that there was a change, because the signs looked

         14  the same, but the regulation had changed.  And you

         15  could get a ticket without even realizing something

         16  had changed.

         17                 And I said to the Department of

         18  Transportation, we met on several occasions over a

         19  year ago, in the Office of the Commissioner, I said,

         20   "I don't understand what's going on here.  So would

         21  you at least show me something that indicates that

         22  when you say you authorized this, whatever that

         23  means, would you please show me something that

         24  indicates how this was authorized?"  In answer to

         25  your question, what study was done?  How did you
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          2  determine that No Standing was a better regulation

          3  than No Parking?  How did all this happen?  Show me

          4  the process.  I'm a lawmaker.  We understand

          5  process.  Process is important, because it involves

          6  the public. And it's not a small thing.

          7                 Well there was no process.  There was

          8  nothing that anyone could show me that indicated

          9  that there was any investigation by the City about

         10  how any of this would take place. Or what the impact

         11  would be.  That's important.  Because over the

         12  years, there were changes in these regulations that

         13  occurred on a number of occasions by the City.

         14                 In fact, Chairman Liu, you might be

         15  interested to know that about 15 years ago, the

         16  regulation that we're talking about now had been No

         17  Standing.  And it was changed to No Parking, the

         18  regulation was changed by the City to No Parking

         19  specifically to accomplish two purposes: Number one,

         20  to make sure that people were able to stop for a few

         21  moments during the day to unload or load their car

         22  without going up to their apartment, and five

         23  seconds later, and having a ticket.  No Parking

         24  allows you a moment or at least if someone is with

         25  the car, for parking for loading or unloading or
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          2  something to take place.

          3                 In such a densely residential

          4  community, with so little parking available, having

          5  the ability to stop your car in front of your

          6  building for a moment or two without getting a

          7  ticket was important.

          8                 The City of New York said, "Yes, that

          9  makes sense. Sure."  Not only that, we said to the

         10  City of New York, this was around 1990, that we

         11  understood that if a parking regulation was No

         12  Parking as opposed to No Standing, authorized

         13  disabled motorists would be able to keep their car

         14  in those areas overnight.  When the regulation was

         15  changed from No Parking to No Standing, as Eva

         16  Moskowitz was discussing, that eliminated the

         17  ability for people who are disabled to leave their

         18  car overnight in those spots.

         19                 The fact of the matter is, that the

         20  number of spots that were lost, where people who

         21  were otherwise could park there overnight because

         22  they are disabled, the number of spots that were

         23  lost far exceeds the number of spots there were

         24  created for handicapped parking.  But it's also

         25  comparing apples to oranges, Mr. Chairman, because

                                                            144

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the spots that MetLife will talk about that they

          3  have created for handicapped parking, and I

          4  congratulate you for doing that.  It would be nice

          5  if they spoke to public officials once in a while,

          6  but okay.  They don't want to do that.  That's your

          7  right.  What MetLife did was create a parking spot,

          8  a number of parking spots that didn't exist before,

          9  for handicapped parking. But the problem here is

         10  that when you park there, which I'm glad handicapped

         11  people can, you can park there all week.  You don't

         12  have to move your car at all.

         13                 The difference here is that these

         14  were spots -- so if you park there and you leave

         15  your car all week, there will be no turnover.  For a

         16  whole week, that spot will be taken.  Here, there

         17  were dozens and dozens of spots where people who

         18  were handicapped could leave their car overnight,

         19  and then go to work in the morning, and not have to

         20  walk a half a mile to get to their car. They can't

         21  do that anymore.

         22                 That change was not insignificant.

         23  And whether it was a good change or a bad change,

         24  whether that was a good change or a bad change, one

         25  of the problems here is that we have an owner of
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          2  Stuyvesant Town and Peters Cooper Village that

          3  doesn't believe that it has any obligation to

          4  discuss these things with public officials or

          5  anybody.  It is the MetLife government.  And that's

          6  the way they like it.  And I'm sure they feel

          7  they're benevolent. And I'm sure that they feel that

          8  they're doing the right thing, but I've got to tell

          9  you, when these signs were under the purview of the

         10  City of New York, we had a whole discussion about

         11  this.

         12                 There was public input.  Public

         13  officials were included, and there was a conscious

         14  decision considered by the people who were

         15  responsible for the public to make the signs No

         16  Parking as opposed to No Standing, for all the

         17  reasons I've stated.               One final note.

         18  One final note about all this.  I heard somebody

         19  mention in their testimony.  Maybe Mike mentioned

         20  it.  But it was alluded to quickly.  That there was

         21  some study that was done by a consultant of Rose

         22  Management about whether fire trucks, I guess that

         23  was included.  I heard someone say fire trucks and

         24  their ability, emergency vehicles, their ability to

         25  pass through the loops.  And whether or not there
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          2  would be parking that would be No Parking or No

          3  Standing.

          4                 Well, let me tell you this.  One of

          5  the advantages of having represented an area for a

          6  long time, is that you have a long history with the

          7  area.  And back in 1990, the City did a study.  Not

          8  a consultant of the owner.  The City of New York did

          9  a study at my request.  Because we actually wanted

         10  to increase parking, and we wanted parking to be on

         11  both sides of the loops. Mr. Stadmeyer might be

         12  interested in this.  And if he had a conversation

         13  with public officials he might know this.

         14                 There was an interest back in 1990 to

         15  increase parking in those loops, because as we all

         16  know, parking is hard to find, particularly in

         17  Manhattan.  And the City of New York, at my request,

         18  when David Dinkins was Mayor, did a study as to

         19  whether or not you had parking on both sides of the

         20  loop, which you don't have now, whether that would

         21  be a problem for emergency vehicles, especially Fire

         22  Department vehicles to pass through the area.  And

         23  they came to the conclusion it was not a problem.

         24                 And as a matter of fact, for a brief

         25  period of time, there was parking that was
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          2  authorized by the City of New York on both sides of

          3  the loops to create more parking.  And then we

          4  decided, collectively, as a community, it wasn't

          5  such a hot idea. We got complaints from people who

          6  lived in the area.  They felt that their sites and

          7  their views were constricted by too much parking,

          8  and it created a hazard for small children, or

          9  mothers who were crossing those loops, because you

         10  couldn't necessarily see cars coming around the

         11  loop.

         12                 I say all this for a very important

         13  reason.  If MetLife at its discretion, wants to keep

         14  the streets private, which is its right, and wants

         15  to make all the decisions about what kind of parking

         16  regulations there will be, and what the impact is on

         17  the community, and that's their right.  You own the

         18  property.  You've made it clear, over and over and

         19  over again, despite repeated efforts by public

         20  officials, you're not interested in a collaborative

         21  relationship with public officials or even the

         22  tenants who live at Stuyvesant and Peter Cooper.

         23  That's your right.

         24                 But if you, if MetLife wants to

         25  establish the rules and regulations, there's a very
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          2  important question as to whether or not the City

          3  should, and can be used as the collection agency for

          4  rules and regulations that are established by a

          5  private entity. That's a very important question.

          6  And it is that question which I think merits serious

          7  consideration by the City Council, and serious

          8  consideration by the people who set regulations in

          9  New York City.

         10                 Because when we lose sight of the

         11  fact that there are private entities with private

         12  rights, but there are also public responsibilities

         13  and we somehow are no longer to differentiate

         14  between one and the other, well, there's a problem.

         15  And we've seen that problem manifest this year with

         16  an owner saying, "We're changing the regulations, we

         17  think it's best for the community. We're not

         18  interested in talking to anybody, and we can do it.

         19  And how can we do it?  Well, because the City will

         20  be able to collect $65 tickets every time someone

         21  changes it."

         22                 One final, final note.  Something

         23  that Eva Moskowitz asked.  But this is important.

         24  With respect to the enforcement. There has been

         25  selective enforcement in the parking in Stuyvesant
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          2  Town for decades.  And selective enforcement means

          3  that if you have that placard in your windshield

          4  that identifies you as a City employee, mostly NYPD

          5  or Fire Department, you will not get a ticket in

          6  most cases.  And that is true of New York City

          7  parking, people who give out those tickets, and that

          8  is true of the people who were conferred special

          9  patrolmen status.  There was always, there always

         10  was, and there continues to be, a dual standard.  If

         11  you have that placard in your windshield, before the

         12  change was made last year, since the change has been

         13  made last year, you've got that placard, odds are,

         14  when someone comes around to give a ticket because

         15  you're in a No Parking or a No Standing zone, which

         16  ever it might be, chances are, if you have that

         17  placard, you're not going to get a ticket.

         18                 We have a responsibility, Mr.

         19  Chairman, and Council Member Moskowitz, to make sure

         20  that the public interest is served. I'm just not

         21  convinced that the public interest is served when we

         22  defer to a private entity the ability to determine

         23  what those rules and regulations are and then we use

         24  the City government as the way to enforce private

         25  rules and regulations.  That concerns me a lot. I
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          2  have no problem with MetLife owning a private

          3  property.  Your private property.  My problem is

          4  that we have lost the distinction between what is

          5  public and what is private, and therein lies the big

          6  problem.  I thank you for your indulgence.  I

          7  appreciate the time you've given me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I had several

          9  questions for you, but you have completely answered

         10  all of them.  Thank you very much for your

         11  thoughtful comments.

         12                 I want to invite the next panel to

         13  testify.  We will have to have brief testimony.  We

         14  do have to make these chambers available for another

         15  public hearing of the Committee on Higher Education

         16  very shortly.  So will the next panel please join

         17  us. Steve Stadmeyer, Vincent Iavarone, and Ellie

         18  Jurado.

         19                 After this panel testifies, we'll

         20  hear from James Roth, Joseph Luceri, Alvin Doyle,

         21  and James Weisman.

         22                 Are you testifying collectively or

         23  individually?

         24                 MS. JURADO- NIEVES: Individually.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.
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          2                 MS. JURADO- NIEVES: Good afternoon

          3  Chairman Liu, Councilman Moskowitz.  My name is Elle

          4  Jurado- Nieves, and I am Government Relations

          5  Counsel for Metropolitan Life Insurance Company.

          6                 MetLife was established in 1868 in

          7  New York City, and since then, has been very active

          8  in communities throughout the United States.

          9  Through its foundation alone, MetLife has

         10  contributed over $30 million to educational, health,

         11  and civic organizations.

         12                 In New York City, our home town,

         13  MedLife has funded the Empire State Building; the

         14  Rockefeller Center; constructed affordable housing

         15  for working class residents; and was the first

         16  insurance company to pay claims following the

         17  horrific attack of 9 11.  MetLife has worked hard to

         18  not just be a corporate entity of New York City, but

         19  to invest its expertise and resources in areas where

         20  it can truly make a difference.

         21                 MetLife's history of community

         22  development in New York City dates back to the early

         23  1900s.  In 1922, MetLife broke ground in Long Island

         24  for the company's first privately financed large-

         25  scale housing project.  Fifty- four apartment houses
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          2  provided homes for 2,000 average income families.

          3  In 1947, the Stuyvesant Town middle income- income

          4  housing complex opened to tenancy.

          5                 MetLife has been asked by the New

          6  York City Council to testify today in regard to

          7  private security enforcement and compliance at two

          8  locations that MedLife owns: Stuyvesant Town and

          9  Peter Cooper Village.  MetLife has contracted with

         10  Rose Associates, a property management company, to

         11  operate and maintain the property on our behalf.

         12                 With me today is Steve Stadmeyer, of

         13  Rose Associates, the General Manager for the

         14  property.  Mr. Stadmeyer will provide you with an

         15  overview of the history of the loop roads at the two

         16  properties, and discuss the safety issues that

         17  required Rose Associates to make improvements to the

         18  locations.

         19                 Also with me today is Vincent

         20  Iavarone, of VMI Maris Traffic Consultants.  Rose

         21  Associates asked VMI to perform a parking evaluation

         22  in April of 2004 in order to accommodate traffic

         23  safety and pedestrian needs.

         24                 I am available at the end of their

         25  comments to answer any questions you may have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Please

          3  proceed.

          4                 MR. STADMEYER: Good afternoon

          5  Chairman Liu, Councilwoman Moskowitz.  My name is

          6  Steve Stadmeyer, the General Manager of Peter Cooper

          7  Village Stuyvesant Town, a private residential

          8  property bound from 14th Street to 23rd Street from

          9  First Avenue to Avenue C, comprising 80 acres of

         10  property, over 11,000 apartments, and approximately

         11  20,000 residents.  I have been manager for the last

         12  4 and a half years, and employed by Rose Associates,

         13  the property management firm for Peter Cooper

         14  Village Stuyvesant Town.

         15                 Some background on the Stuyvesant

         16  Town loop roads. There are four private loop roads

         17  in Stuyvesant Town, and Stuyvesant Town runs from

         18  14th to 20th Street.  All loop roads are open to the

         19  public.  Anyone may park on the loop roads in

         20  accordance with New York City Department of

         21  Transportation signage. New York City parking

         22  tickets are issued to violators of parking rules.

         23  All fines for parking tickets are paid to New York

         24  City Department of Finance.  Parking tickets may be

         25  issued by governing New York City agencies including

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the New York City Police Department and Peter Cooper

          3  Village Stuyvesant Town special patrolmen.  All

          4  Peter Cooper Stuyvesant Town special patrolmen

          5  undergo training accordance with New York State

          6  Division of Criminal Justice and are deputized by

          7  the Police Commissioner of the City of New York.

          8                 Prior to changes I had experienced

          9  these following problems in managing this property,

         10  related to parking to parking on Stuyvesant Town

         11  loop roads:

         12                 1. Continuous use of the right side

         13  of the loop roads where some vehicles never moved

         14  for months.

         15                 2. Complaints of vehicles with New

         16  York City placards parking on the right side which

         17  says, "No Parking Anytime".

         18                 3. No spot on the loop roads for

         19  vehicles to drop off passengers or packages

         20  resulting in double- parked vehicles.

         21                 4. Problems of emergency vehicles

         22  having difficulty accessing property because of

         23  double- parked cars.

         24                 5. No designated handicap spots.

         25                 6. No handicap ramps or curb cuts
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          2                 7. No designated crosswalks for

          3  pedestrians.

          4                 8. No spots for tenant or management

          5  delivery trucks, causing management to use interior

          6  pedestrian pathways to accommodate deliveries.

          7                 9. No designated spots for

          8  motorcycles- they use spaces between cars which

          9  causes problems, scratches and makes spots too tight

         10  between motorcycles and cars.

         11                 Given these problems, members of my

         12  staff met with representatives of New York City

         13  Department of Transportation in February, 2004, to

         14  outline some of the above issues, and review

         15  options.  It was decided that Peter Cooper Village

         16  Stuyvesant Town would authorize a profession study

         17  of the parking situation.  We then authorized VMI

         18  Maris Traffic and Parking Consultants to study the

         19  situation and come up with acceptable solutions.

         20                 The final plan was reviewed with New

         21  York City Department of Transportation, and

         22  implemented in the Summer of 2004.  Notices were

         23  posted on the loop roads, and all vehicles parked on

         24  the loop roads.

         25                 Shortly thereafter, I met with
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          2  Jennifer Sedlis of Council Member Moskowitz's office

          3  to personally conduct an oversight review of the

          4  changes and modifications to the parking.

          5                 The improvements have been in effect

          6  for over one year, and have met the following

          7  objectives:

          8                 1. Limited the abuse of double-

          9  parked vehicles which prevented emergency vehicles

         10  from serving the property

         11                 2. Provided a safe area for residents

         12  with special needs to park and discharge passengers

         13  and drivers

         14                 3. Provided an area for the residents

         15  and delivery vehicles to safely drop off or pick up.

         16                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         17  allow me to present the facts.  As you can see, we

         18  made every effort to study the situation with an

         19  understanding and concern of the needs of the

         20  property and residents.  I believe that the final

         21  plan successfully address all issues that were

         22  brought to our attention by the community and our

         23  residents.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Mr.

         25  Iavarone, please proceed.

                                                            157

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 I want to thank all those who are

          3  here for the Committee on Higher Education for

          4  participating in today's hearing. That hearing will

          5  start at 1:30, and will be Chaired by the Honorable

          6  Charles Barron, Council Member.

          7                 MR. IAVARONE: Good afternoon.  My

          8  name is Vincent M. Iavarone, and I am a Senior

          9  Partner with VMI- Maris Traffic and Parking

         10  Consultants.  My educational background includes a

         11  Bachelor of Civil Engineering from the Brooklyn

         12  Polytechnic Institute and a Masters in Highway

         13  Transportation from Yale University.

         14                 I have been a Traffic and Parking

         15  Consultant for 25 years.  Prior to becoming a

         16  consultant, I had transportation experience in both

         17  the private and public sectors, including eight

         18  years with the New York City Department of Traffic.

         19                 In April of 2004, VMI- Maris was

         20  engaged by Stuyvesant Town to inspect and evaluate

         21  four private loop roads on Stuyvesant Town property,

         22  for the purpose of recommending appropriate traffic

         23  signs and pavement markings to improve safety and

         24  efficiency for: Emergency vehicle access; pedestrian

         25  safety; parking for people with disabilities; and
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          2  resident parking.

          3                 The private roads are semicircular,

          4  one- way clockwise direction roadways, connecting to

          5  the four perimeter city streets which border the

          6  property, and are between 34 and 44 feet wide, which

          7  is comparable to public New York City streets.

          8                 VMI- Maris recommended resident

          9  parking, and parking for people with disabilities on

         10  the left curb of each loop.  And No Standing/No

         11  Parking regulations on the right curb of each loop.

         12  The parking provided on the left curb consists of

         13  approximately 250 spaces, including 40 spaces for

         14  people with disabilities.  These spaces are

         15  primarily angle parking, with some limited parallel

         16  parking locations.

         17                 The right curb is meant to serve

         18  delivery and service vehicles, as well as passengers

         19  pickup and discharge.  A No Standing regulation was

         20  installed between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6 a.m.

         21  to eliminate a chronic problem of long- term

         22  parking.

         23                 As a result of the long- term parking

         24  problem, delivery, service, and passenger

         25  pickup/discharge vehicles were double parking, which
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          2  prevented vehicular circulation in the roadways,

          3  including access by emergency vehicles.

          4                 In addition to the parking

          5  regulations, a number of pedestrian crosswalks were

          6  designated with appropriate signs and markings.

          7                 Observations performed subsequent to

          8  the installation of the new parking regulations

          9  revealed no incidents of double parking on any of

         10  the loop roads.

         11                 It is the position of VMI- Maris

         12  Traffic and Parking Consultants that the existing

         13  parking regulations provide safe and efficient

         14  operation of emergency vehicle access, parking for

         15  people with disabilities, and residential parking.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         18    I have just a couple of quick questions.

         19                 Mr. Stadmeyer, when you met with the

         20  representatives of the Department of Transportation,

         21  was it a courtesy call to the DOT?  Or did you have

         22  to have the Department of Transportation's approval

         23  to make the changes that were made at Stuyvesant

         24  Town?

         25                 MR. STADMEYER: First of all, it was
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          2  members of my staff that met with the Department of

          3  Transportation.  But some of the reasons that we met

          4  with them, is obviously they have much more

          5  experience in dealing with this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you consulted

          7  with them.  Did you require their approval to make

          8  the changes?  Or could you have made the changes

          9  even if the Department of Transportation did not

         10  agree?

         11                 MR. STADMEYER: That I'm not really

         12  clear on.  We didn't do it -- you know, we wanted

         13  their approval because we knew they --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Did they grant their

         15  approval, their explicit approval for these changes?

         16                 MR. STADMEYER: I don't have anything

         17  in writing with it, but yes, the --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that's part

         19  of the frustration here.  The whole process seems to

         20  be somewhat murky. That's not necessarily your

         21  responsibility, but just between- what is the

         22  Department of Transportation and the City

         23  responsible for, and what are the owners of this

         24  property, through their representatives or directly,

         25  what can they do, or what changes can they make
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          2  without approval is a very murky process.  We're

          3  going to have to explore that in greater detail.

          4                 Mr. Iavarone, did you also meet with

          5  the representatives of the Department of

          6  Transportation?

          7                 MR. IAVARONE: No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you're the expert

          9  in this study that you conducted, and yet there were

         10  intermediaries that presented the results of your

         11  study to the Department of Transportation and

         12  consultation?

         13                 MR. IAVARONE: That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 Council Member Moskowitz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         18  Mr. Chair.

         19                 I would ask in the interest of time,

         20  and you've been very generous with your times in

         21  terms of this subject.  There are many subjects in

         22  the City of New York vis a vis transportation, and I

         23  appreciate all the attention you have given this

         24  topic.  But I would ask that the Committee take

         25  written testimony for those people we don't have a
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          2  chance to hear from.

          3                 I have had the opportunity to hear,

          4  on numerous occasions, from many of the thousands of

          5  residents in Sty- Town and Peter Cooper as well as

          6  the Community Board.  I notice the Chair of CB6

          7  Transportation is here, Lou Supersky (phonetic).  So

          8  I would hope that if we run out of time, which I

          9  assume we will, because it's seven minutes and there

         10  may be colleagues waiting that we could accept

         11  written testimony.  If that would be possible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Absolutely.  And

         13  again, I want to thank everybody who is at this

         14  hearing for the generosity of their time.  I think

         15  it's not most convenient for you to testify, or come

         16  down to one of these hearing.  So I appreciate your

         17  being here.

         18                 We do have a long list of people.

         19  After this panel finishes answering their questions,

         20  we will call the witness up in rapid order.  If you

         21  could keep your comments as concise a possible, that

         22  would be very helpful to our process.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Let me just

         24  make one comment about Mr. Stadmeyer's testimony,

         25  since he mentioned by office.  It is true that Mr.
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          2  Stadmeyer met with Jennie Stedlis, the Director of

          3  my district office, but what you presented to us was

          4  a fait au complet.  There was no attempt to solicit

          5  information or advice.  You came and said, "Here are

          6  all the changes, this is what's happening, thank you

          7  very much, good bye."  So I just wanted to be clear

          8  for the record.  It wasn't a meeting where there was

          9  discussion of the needs of the community and how

         10  your changes might impact them.

         11                 Let me cut to the chase in the

         12  interest of time.  Is it your position that you

         13  increased the number of spots for people with

         14  disabilities?  Is that MetLife's position?

         15                 MR. STADMEYER: I'll answer that.

         16  Before, there were really no designated spots for

         17  handicapped parking, and people were parking on the

         18  right side.  And maybe Vince can answer the safety

         19  part of that.  In terms of that, it wasn't really a

         20  safety issue, because people then would have to then

         21  exit the car into traffic. So what we did, and part

         22  of Vince's study, was that we designated spots that

         23  were safer, and then wider, so people with a

         24  wheelchair would be able to get in and out

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Leaving the
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          2  issue of safety aside for the moment, which is

          3  obviously of paramount concern, is your position

          4  that there was a net gain?

          5                 MR. STADMEYER: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.  Is

          7  it your position that the amount of parking for the

          8  handicapped remains the same?

          9                 MR. STADMEYER: It's different.  We

         10  created ten designated handicapped spots -- 40,

         11  there are ten in each loop.  On the right side of

         12  the road, I don't know how many spots, Vince has the

         13  number, there were many more spots on the right side

         14  of the road.  If you consider that all are available

         15  for handicap parking. All of that was not available

         16  for handicap parking because it was used by other

         17  people.  And maybe people with placards.

         18                 So it wasn't -- even though people

         19  had handicapped parking could park on that side of

         20  the road, it was not designated there.  It was a hit

         21  and miss to see if there were spaces there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: From the

         23  point of view of the customer, the person who has a

         24  disability, if you were driving around in your car,

         25  and you had a disability, would you experience it as
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          2  a net loss?

          3                 MR. STADMEYER: It depends.  Because

          4  certain times of the day, the spaces could be taken,

          5  and there were no spots on the right side of the

          6  road.  We've created now, ten designated spots,

          7  designated only for handicapped parking --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But this

          9  goes back to Assemblyman Sanders point, which is

         10  those designated spots don't increase the

         11  availability, because you can park there for the

         12  week. Whereas, there's the -- and I always mix it

         13  up, whether it's No Standing or No Parking -- you

         14  would have to move your car on a daily basis.

         15                 MR. IAVARONE: No.  That's not

         16  correct.  The previous regulation was No Parking

         17  Anytime.  And motorists with a placard, whether it

         18  was New York City Police or Fire, or motorists who

         19  were disabled, could stay in that area of No Parking

         20  Anytime for prolonged periods of time.  Virtually

         21  indefinitely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So your

         23  perspective is completely at odds than with the

         24  community's perspective.  From your perspective, at

         25  worst, everything has remained the same, in terms of
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          2  availability of parking spaces for the handicapped.

          3                 MR. IAVARONE: That was the attempt.

          4  And that's why 40 designated --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Are you

          6  willing to concede that your attempt might have

          7  failed?  In this one respect.

          8                 MR. IAVARONE: I always make that

          9  concession.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Love that.

         11  Love that.

         12                 Let me ask you a practical question.

         13  Are you willing to sit down with the elected

         14  officials of this community to try and find a way to

         15  try and find more parking spaces for the

         16  handicapped?  That's a yes or a no question.

         17                 MR. STADMEYER: I have no problem

         18  getting any information if it makes us a better

         19  property.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry.

         21  Say that again.

         22                 MR. IAVARONE: I have no problem

         23  sitting down with anybody if it makes us a better

         24  property.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So the
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          2  answer is yes. Yes, you will sit down with the

          3  elected officials to figure out a way, and maybe you

          4  could bring your traffic consultant who seems to

          5  know a lot about it, and since you seem to think the

          6  DOT knows a lot about it, I would like my office, in

          7  conjunction with Assemblyman Sanders, to set up a

          8  meeting where we address, and of course, Community

          9  Board Six, where we address the issue of what can be

         10  done to increase the number of spaces.  And we don't

         11  have to argue whether you have or haven't.  The

         12  customer wants more.  And there has got to be a way

         13  to figure this out without legislation, without --

         14  just friendly people sitting down to collectively

         15  solve a problem.

         16                 So I'm glad that the answer if yes.

         17  We will call your office this afternoon and set up

         18  the meeting.

         19                 I have no further questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         21  Member Moskowitz. And I would also offer the full

         22  resources of this Committee in helping come to some

         23  solution that will best benefit the residents, as

         24  well as meet the needs of the owners.  But

         25  certainly, we want to meet the needs of the
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          2  residents.

          3                 We have many people who have attended

          4  today' hearing for the express purpose of testifying

          5  with their comments.  It's very frustrating for

          6  anybody who has sat here with us for nearly four

          7  hours waiting for your chance to speak.  I

          8  unfortunately, will have to take a big hit, and ask

          9  for your forgiveness, because we are simply out of

         10  time.  But I do want to recognize all the people who

         11  did come with their intention of offering their

         12  important input.

         13                 Mr. James Roth, who had actually

         14  prepared a very comprehensive presentation on

         15  Powerpoint; Joseph Luceri; Alvin Doyle; James

         16  Weisman, the General Council for the United Spinal

         17  Association, which is a very effective advocate

         18  organization for people with disabilities; Patrick

         19  Murphy; William Lehr; James Walker; Tom Nonnon.  And

         20  I want to thank you Mr. Nonnan for offering to

         21  testify on the stoop lines as well.  Russ Vicino;

         22  Dr. Larry Ridley; and Sui Zee.

         23                 Once again, I think that the owners

         24  of the property have expressly consented to meeting

         25  with the elected officials of the area to come up
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          2  with a plan that will better meet the needs of the

          3  residents.  And the full resources of this Committee

          4  will be available to help in that regard as well.

          5                 In addition, because all of you have

          6  spent time here, I am certainly available to meet

          7  with all of you in about 15 minutes to the extent

          8  that anybody would like to meet with this Committee

          9  and our staff.

         10                 And also, if anybody does have

         11  written testimony, you can certainly submit it here

         12  today now, or you can send them in as well.

         13                 With that, I want to thank my

         14  colleague, the Honorable Charles Barron, for his

         15  indulgence in allowing our Committee to go overtime,

         16  and now we will hand this chamber over to the

         17  Committee on Higher Education.

         18                 Once again, I thank all of the people

         19  who came down this morning.  I apologize that we ran

         20  out of time.

         21                 This meeting of the Transportation

         22  Committee is hereby adjourned.

         23                 (Meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.)

         24
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